trort 2020

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

Wuilders OF A New Workd




Contents Annual Report 2020

sz
@ FECTO CEMENT LIMITED .




COMPANY INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Aamir Ghani Chairman

Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto Chief Executive

Ms. Saira Ibrahim Bawani

Mr. Khalid Yacoob

Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan

Mr. Rohail Ajmal (Nominee of Saudi Pak
Industrial & Agricultural Investment Co. Ltd.)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Abdul Samad, FCA

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Abdul Wahab, FCA

LEGAL ADVISOR

Mian Nisar Ahmed & Co. (MNACO)
11-E/1l, Main Gulberg

Lahore

REGISTERED OFFICE

35-Darul Aman Housing Society
Block 7/8, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi

Website: www.fectogroup.com
Phone Nos.(+ 9221) 34530120-24

MARKETING OFFICE

339, Main Peshawar Road
Chairing Cross Service Road
Westridge-1,

Rawalpindi

Phone Nos. (+ 9251) 5467111-13

@ EEeEEYEIYED

Annual Report 2020

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Chairman
Mr. Rohail Ajmal

Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib

HUMAN RESOURCE &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Chairman
Mr. Khalid Yacoob
Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib

AUDITORS
Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafiq,
Chartered Accountants

SHARE REGISTRAR

F. D. Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt) Ltd.
1705, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A
. 1. Chundrigar Road

Karachi-74000

Phone Nos. (+ 9221) 32271905-6

FACTORY
Sangjani, Islamabad
Phone Nos. (+ 9251) 2296065-8

BANKERS

Askari Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Silk Bank Limited




VISION STATEMENT, MISSION STATEMENT AND Annual Report 2020
CORPORATE STRATEGY

To compete in tough and competitive market, focusing on "Satisfaction"
of customers, and stakeholders with challenging spirit and flexibility,
striving hard to make profit, creating value for our customers and to
continue as a successful Company.

To manage and operate the company in a manner that allows growth
and profitability without high risk for stakeholders and the company by
offering quality product to our customers, while striving to improve
our product to meet our customers needs.

Our Corporate Strategy and objectives for the future are to find new
and improved means of cost reduction, fuel economy and to acquire
advanced manufacturing capabilities to support our product development
efforts and product line expansion and stand ready to leverage our
debts and be responsive to the changing economic scenario. We believe
In harnessing the inherent strengths of available human resource and
materials to the utmost and a commitment for building a solid foundation
poised for sustainable growth for the long-term benefit of our
shareholders and our employees.

L&%.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Annual Report 2020

Notice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held at
Registered Office, 35-Darulaman Housing Society, Block 7/8, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, on Wednesday, October 28,
2020 at 02.30 p.m. to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSESS
1) To confirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2019.

2) To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2020 together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

3) To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2021 and fix their remuneration. Present auditors M/s.
Rahman Sarfarz Rahim Igbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants retires and being eligible have offered themselves
for the re-appointment. The Board based on the recommendation of Audit Committee has proposed the
appointment of M/s. Rahman Sarfarz Rahim Igbal Rafiq Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company
for the year ending June 30, 2021.

4) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

(ABDUL WAHAB)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Karachi: September 29, 2020
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Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, October 19, 2020 to Wednesday,
October 28, 2020 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Shares Registrar at the close of
business on Friday, October 16, 2020 will be considered in time for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as a
proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. An instrument appointing a proxy must be received at
the Registered Office of the Company not later than forty eight hours before the time of holding the Meeting.
The proxy shall produce his/her CNIC or passport to prove his/her identity.

3. CDC Account Holders will have to further follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January
26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

4. Members may exercise their right to vote as per the provisions of the Companies (Postal and Ballot) Regulations,
2018 subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017. Further details in this
regard will be communicated to the shareholders within legal time frame as stipulated under the Regulations
if required.

5. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify any change in their address to our share
registrar immediately. Members holding shares in CDS system are requested to have their addresses updated
with participant or CDC Investor Account Service.

6.  Asrequired by the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Distribution of Dividends)
Regulations, 2017 all listed companies are bound to pay cash dividend to their shareholders only through
electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. All those shareholders
who have not yet submitted their bank account details in the form of Electronic Credit Mandate form (available
on the website of the Company at www.fectogroup.com) are requested to submit the requisite form duly
signed with their CNIC to our registrar in case of physical shares. Shareholders holding their shares in CDS
system are requested to submit Electronic Credit Mandate Form directly to CDC.

7. Asper Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company is required to replace its physical
shares into book entry form in a manner as may be prescribed by the SECP and from the date notified by
the SECP within 4 years from the date of commencement of this act i.e. May 30, 2017. Members holding
shares in physical form are hence encouraged to open either their CDC sub account with stock broker or
investor account with CDC in order to replace their physical shares into scrip less form.

8.  Shareholders who could not claim their dividend and/or bonus shares, if any, due to any reasons, are requested
to contact our share registrar in this regard. They can also access to list of unclaimed dividend and bonus
shares uploaded on company's website at www.fectogroup.com for their claim, if any.

9.  Member(s) who wish to receive annual financial statements and notice of annual general meeting through
email, instead of through courier/post are requested to give their consent in writing on standard request
form available on the Company's website www.fectogroup.com to the Company with their registered Email
address so the Company can provide them the same at their valid Email ID.

10. The annual report of the Company has been uploaded at the Company's website www.fectogroup.com.
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11. The Company shall provide video conference facility to its members residing outside Karachi for attending
the meeting through video link. The said facility is subject to receiving demand from members holding an
aggregate of 10% or more shareholding and if demand is received at least 7 days before the date of meeting.

In this regard members who wish to avail this facility are requested to please send their request duly signed
as per the following format to the registered address of the Company.

I/We of being a member of Fecto Cement Limited,
holder of ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/ CDC Account
No. hereby opt for video link facility at

Signature of Member

@ EerEEYE




Statement under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings)

Regulations, 2017

Annual Report 2020

Name of Investee Company

Proposed unlisted Public
Limited Company

Proposed Private Limited
Company

Total Investment Approved

Equity investment of USD 24
million equivalent in Pak Rupee in
Phases was approved by members
in EOGM held on December 01,
2018.

Equity investment of USD 1.2
million equivalent in Pak Rupee in
Phases was approved by members
in EOGM held on December 01,
2018.

Amount of Investment
Made to date

Nil

Nil

Reasons for deviations from the
approved timeline of investment,
where investment decision was to
be implemented in specified time

As stated in Notice of EOGM held
on December 01, 2018, the work
on project was expected to startin
July 2019 subject to completion of
formalities. The Chinese project
team is evaluating the site and
completed required work, however,
due to Covid 19 pandemic, Chinese
team has returned back to China
and will return to commence work
after improvement in post
pandemic situation.

As stated in Notice of EOGM held
on December 01, 2018, the project
was expected to be completed by
December 2019 subject to
completion of formalities.

Considering the present slow down
in construction sector coupled with
Covid 19 pandemic situation
resulting return of Chinese team to
their country,the JV partners have
agreed to hold the project
temporarily and once the situation
improved, work on the project will
start accordingly.

Material change in financial
statements of associated company
or associated undertaking since
date of the resolution passed for
approval of investement

N/A
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW Annual Report 2020
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

It gives me immense pleasure to present before you my Review Report on the overall performance of the Board
and effectiveness of the role played in achieving the Company's objectives.

The Board of Directors of the Company has performed their fiduciary duties diligently in upholding the best interest
of all stakeholders in efficient and effective manners. The Board has exercised its powers and has performed its
duties as stated in the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 (the Code) contained in the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (the Rule Book) where the Company
is listed.

The Board during the year ended 30 June 2020 played an effective role in managing the affairs of the Company
and achieving its objectives in the following manner;

® The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive and independent directors on the
Board and its committees as required under the Code and that members of the Board and its respective committees
have adequate skill, experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company;

® The Board has developed and put in place an effective mechanism for an annual evaluation of its own performance
and that of its committees and individual directors. The findings of the annual evaluation are assessed and re-
evaluated by the Board periodically;

® The Board has ensured that the directors are aware of their duties and responsibilities under the Companies Act,
2017, relevant Rules and Regulations and Articles of Associations of the Company. Further, they are provided with
orientation courses to enable them to perform their duties in an effective manner.;

® The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its committees were held with the requisite
quorum. The Board members have received agenda for the meetings containing all relevant information require
to helping them for constructive discussions are delivered in timely manner. All the decision making were taken
through Board resolutions and that the minutes of all the meetings (including committees) are appropriately
recorded and maintained,;

® The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and corporate values
adhered through the Company and have developed significant policies for smooth functioning;

® All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen and
formalize the corporate decision making process and particularly all the related party transactions executed by the
Company were approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee;

® The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular assessment through
self-assessment mechanism and /or internal audit activities;

® The Board has prepared and approved the directors' report and has ensured that it is published with the quarterly
and annual financial statements of the Company and the contents of the report are in accordance with the
requirement of applicable laws and regulations;

® The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely manner and the Board
members are kept abreast of developments between meetings; and
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® The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulation applicable to the Company and the Board has always prioritized the Compliance with all the applicable
laws and regulations in term of their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decision making.

AAMIR GHANI
CHAIRMAN

September 29, 2020
Karachi.
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DIRECTORS'REPORT TO THE MEMBERS Annual Report 2020

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting before you the annual report together with Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

OVERVIEW

During the year under review, overall dispatches of industry grew by 1.98 % with total sales volume of 47.81 million
tons as against 46.88 million tons of last year. Local sales volume of the industry decreased by 0.98% and reached
to 39.96 million tons as against 40.34 million tons of last year. Exports of the industry, whereas grew by 19.98%
with sales volume of 7.85 million tons as against 6.54 million tons of last year.

Overall sales volume of plants located in north increased to 36.30 million tons witnessing a growth of 4.03%, out
of which local sales volume was of 34.33 million tons whereas exports were of 1.97 million tons. Local sales volume
of plants located in north hence, increased by 6.07% whereas exports reduced by 22.07%. Performance of plants
located in south remained worst than plants located in north, since their overall sales volume reduced by 4%, out
of which local sales reduced by 29.37%, however, exports from south increased by 46.47%.

Main reasons for reduction in local sales volume was of slowdown in construction activities and imposition of
lockdown in the country in last quarter of the year under review due to breakout of Covid 19 pandemic in the
country.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

Production and dispatches of the Company for the year under review with comparison to last year were as follows:

------------------- TONS ------mmmmmmmmaee
2020 2019 CHANGE IN %

Production

Clinker 559,016 593,312 (5.78)

Cement 640,576 680,133 (5.82)
Dispatches

Local 571,106 617,317 (7.49)

Export 70,344 66,295 6.11

Total 641,450 682,612 (6.03)

Production of clinker and cement for the year under review reduced by 5.78% and 5.82% respectively, main reason
for such reduction was of lesser demand in the market and availability of clinker stock at the start of the year.

Local sales volume of the Company during the year under review, reduced by 7.49% as against reduction of 0.98%
of industry volume and increased volume of 6.07% of plants located in north.Exports of the company increased
by 6.11% as against the reduction of exports by 22.07% of plants located in north.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Following is the comparison of financial results of the Company for the year under review with last year.

Rupees in 000 except EPS

2020 2019
Net sales - Local 3,033,739 4,332,388
Net sales - export 430,165 408,108
Total Net Sales - Net 3,463,904 4,740,496
Cost of sales 4,179,341 4,146,193
Gross (Loss)/Profit (715,437) 594,303
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (1,034,246) 130,343
(Loss)/Profit after taxation (770,071) 88,975
(Loss)/Earnings Per Share (Rupees) (15.35) 1.77

SALES REVENUE

During the year under review, local gross sales revenue of the Company reduced by 19.27% as compared to last
year though local sales volume reduced by 7.49%. Prices in local market remained depressed throughout the year
due to slowdown in construction activities coupled with excess capacity which further aggravated by coming into
operation of new production lines and lockdown imposed in the country by the Government due to Covid 19
pandemic.

Net local sales revenues for the year reduced to Rs. 3,034 Million as against Rs. 4,332 Million of last year registering
a reduction of 29.96% as against reduction in gross sales revenue of 19.27% and reduction in local sales volume
by 7.49%.Reasons for this substantial reduction were as explained above plus increase in Federal Excise Duty (FED)
by the Government.Export sales revenue of the Company increased by 5.40% as against increase in volume by
6.11%. Though export price in USD term reduced but in Pak Rupee term, it increased due to depreciation of Pak
Rupee against USD resulting higher retention on exports.

Over all net sales revenue of the company reduced to Rs. 3,464 million as against 4,740 million of last year showing
reduction of 23.13% as against reduction in volume by 6.03%.

PROFITABILITY

Cost of sales of the Company during the year under review increased by 0.80% though overall sales volume reduced
by 6.03%. Cost of sales increased by Rs. 441 per ton as compared to last year. As against increase of cost of sales
by 0.80%, fuel and power cost increased by 10.41%, main cause of such increase was imposition of multiple charges
in electricity bills by the Government coupled with withdrawal of subsidy of Rs. 3 per unit for industrial consumers
as implemented by the previous Government. Such measures resulted increase of Rs. 5.53 per unit of electricity.
Prices of coal in international markets reduced in later part of the year, however, higher stevedoring charges at
PIBTL as compared to KPT and increase in transportation charges kept the pressure on coal cost as well.

Reduction in local sale price coupled with increase in fuel and power cost, the Company suffered gross loss of
Rs. 715 Million for the year under review as against gross profit of Rs. 594 Million of last year, Administrative and
distribution expenses reduced during the year due to stringent cost measures taken by the management to curtail
expenses.

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED oty




Annual Report 2020

The Company suffered loss before taxation of Rs. 1,034 Million as against profit before taxation of Rs. 130 million
of last year.

Loss before taxation resulted in minimum tax provision and reversal of deferred tax hence, the Company suffered
loss after taxation of Rs. 770 Million profit after taxation as against Rs. 89 Million of last year.

Loss per share for the year was of Rs. 15.35 as against earnings per share of Rs. 1.77 of last year.
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES

The Company is exposed to certain inherent risks and uncertainties related to the environments in which it works
and its operations may affect due to such risks and uncertainties. We, however, consider following as key risks:

° Significant competition in the market due to recent expansion in the sector.
° Adverse movement in prices of input costs and foreign exchange rates specially imported coal.
° Data security and privacy.

The Company takes necessary steps with the external and internal stakeholders to mitigate these risks to appropriate
level.

IMPACT OF COMPANY"'S BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT

The Company is in the business of manufacture and sale of cement and any emission from the manufacturing
process may affect the area where its operations are conducted. The Company is conscious of this affect and has
taken several steps to control the environment in which it works. Plant of the Company is state of the art and meets
all national and international standards of quality control. The Company has installed a waste heat recovery power
plant to re use waste heat of the manufacturing system and generates clean energy for its operations.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Demand of cement in local markets remains subdued during the financial year under review;however, in first
quarter of current financial year demand of cement has picked up the momentum subsequent to lifting of lockdown
restrictions. Pakistan seems to appear successful in controlling the spread of Covid 19 pandemic but its likely
resurgence as witnessed in other countries will continue to dampen the economic sentiments.

Economic stimulation measures taken by the Government to contain the economic impact of Covid 19 including
reduction in interest rates, deferment of principal payment of loans and concessional rate finance schemes had
positive impact and helped revive economic and industrial activities. Further, the Government's resolve to revive
construction sector and provide affordable housing to common people is expected to create more demand for
cement and help stabilize local cement prices. Resumption of exports to Afghanistan which remaines suspended
in last quarter due to closure of border will help plants located in north to absorb excess capacity.

On cost side, prices of coal in international market have retreated from its peak as a result of global slowdown due
to Covid 19.This reduction will bid well for the industry as coal is major cost for cement manufacturing. Persistent
Increase in electricity charges,currency depreciation and higher incidence of tax will continue pushing up the cost.
The prices of other input costs like cement bags and diesel will also affect the profitability. The management being
cognizant of these cost elements will continue to look avenues for improvement in operational efficiencies and
cost saving measures to remain competitive.
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PROGRESS ON INVESTMENT/PROJECTS
APPROVED

Due to slow down in construction activities and Spread of Covid 19 implementation of new projects as approved
by members in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on December 01, 2018, remained stagnant. The
Board did take steps to precede with the approval of members for investments in associated companies to be
formed, however, departure of joint venture partners teams due to spread of Covid19 resulted halt in activities
to move forward. The management is in contact with them and expects them to return once the situation of Covid
19 normalized. The companies will be formed after completion of preliminary work, legal formalities and return
of Chinese teams and accordingly investments as approved by members will be made in due course of time.

Update on this regard has been presented in statement under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 attached with Notice of Annual General
Meeting.

The Company meanwhile has formed a wholly owned subsidiary company namely Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private)
Limited to undertake new cement project on behalf of the Company. The subsidiary company has not commenced
any business operations, therefore, consolidation of accounts of subsidiary with the Company would not have any
benefit, and hence, company sought exemption under Section 228(7) of the Companies Act, 2017 from Securities
and Exchange of Pakistan (SECP) for preparation of consolidated financial statements. The SECP was pleased to
accord relaxation to the Company from preparation of consolidated financial statements vide its letter dated
September 21, 2020, therefore only standalone financial statements are prepared and attached with this annual
report. Financial highlights of the subsidiary company, however, have been disclosed in Note No. 15.1 of attached
financial statements and its annual accounts would be available for inspection of members at the registered office
of the Company and would be sent to members if so requested.

NEW

As we explained above of ever increasing electricity cost, the Board after due consideration has decided to install
a 5 MW solar power plant to curtail electricity cost and move towards cleaner energy. The Board has advised
management to avail SBP concessional financing for renewable energy power project. The project is expected to
be completed during current financial year. Completion of this project will help reduce electricity cost.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors are pleased to inform that the company has fully complied with the Code of Corporate Governance
as contained in the listing regulations of Stock Exchange where the Company is listed.

In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to state that:

1. Thefinancial statements, prepared by the company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity;

2. Proper books of account have been maintained by the company;

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

4.  International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements;
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5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored:;
6.  There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern;

7. The value of Provident Fund Investments as per unaudited accounts of Provident Fund Trust for the year
ended June 30, 2020 was Rs. 454 Million (2019 Rs. 399 Million) as per audited accounts.

8.  There is no outstanding statutory payment due on account of taxes, levies and charges except normal and
routine nature and as disclosed in attached financial statements.

Key operating and financial data for six years is annexed to this report, at page No. 20

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors of the Company has established an effective and efficient internal financial control system
to ensure effective conduct of company's operation, safeguarding of all assets and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and reliable and timely financial reporting. In house internal audit department is equipped with
suitable and qualified staff to continuously review the internal control system and its effectiveness. Internal audit
department is responsible to identify any weakness in the system in place by the Board and suggest any deviation,
its rectification and improvements in a timely manner to the Audit Committee which ultimately takes corrective
steps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into during the year were on arm's length basis and duly approved by the
Audit Committee and the Board as required by the Act and relevant regulations. Detail of transactions entered into
with related parties is given in Note 37 to the financial statements and respective notes.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Detail of Number of Board members and their composition is mentioned in Statement of Compliance at page

No. 21.
During the year five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director is given below:

Attended
Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto 55
Mr. Aamir Ghani 35
Mr. Rohail Ajmal 55
Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib 55
Mr. Khalid Yacoob 55
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan 4/5
Ms. Saira Ibrahim Bawani 35

Directors who could not attend the meeting due to illness or some other engagements were granted Leave of
absence. Due to lockdown situation in the country as a result of outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the meetings
of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee dated April 29, 2020 were held remotely and the resolutions on
the necessary matters were passed by circulation.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Company are non executive directors except CEO. Remuneration to CEO is approved by the
shareholders in their meetings. Non executive directors are paid remuneration for attending Board and its committees
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meetings are per approved policy. The detail of remuneration paid to CEO and non executive directors is given in
Note 36 to the financial statements.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Board of Directors of your Company has established Audit Committee of the Board in compliance with the
requirements the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), Regulations, 2019. Term of reference of the

Committee was duly communicated to the members by the Board.

During the year four (4) meetings of the Committee were held. Attendance by each member is given below:

Attended
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Independent Director- Chairman 3/
Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib Non-Executive Director 4/4
Mr. Roahil Ajmal Non-Executive Director 4/4

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), Regulations, 2019, The
Board of Directors has established this Committee comprising three members, of whom all are non executive
directors, whereas chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. Term of reference of the Committee
was duly communicated to the members by the Board. During the year one (1) meeting of the Committee was held
which was attended by all members.

TRAINING PROGRAM OF DIRECTORS

Out of seven(7) directors five (5) directors have already attained the training program.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY

Your Company being a responsible corporate citizen always conscious to discharge its obligations towards the
people who work for it day and night, people around its work place and to the society as a whole. Few of the

highlights of the initiatives undertaken by the Company during the year were:

° Donation for construction of Shelter homes for poor people, a project initiated by Administration of Islamabad
Capital Territory.

[ Construction and renovation of a girl school in nearby village.

° Participation with local administration for cleaning of Khan pur Dam canal by providing cement and providing
manpower.

] Provision of clean water to nearby village for which a reservoir and pipe line were constructed by the Company.
Company has also installed an electric pump for smooth supply of water.

° The Company donated an amount of Rs. 5.1 Million (2019: 8.9 Million) for health, social welfare and education.
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COVID 19

Covid 19 pandemic posed unprecedented challenges to countries around the world, seriously disrupting existing
norms of daily routines and business environment. Pakistan was also not immune to this pandemic resulting
imposition of countrywide lockdown in the country which seriously affected the economic activities. Government
being cognizant of the situation undertook various measures to mitigate the effect of this pandemic by announcing
relief measures like reduction in interest rate, concessional financing schemes for industries and providing cash
to poor segments of society.

This pandemic also tested Company's preparedness to deal with this kind of gigantic challenge. The Company on
its part took measures to ensure not only safety of its staff but also their livelihood with continued and seamless
business operations during this pandemic. In addition to this, being conscious to its social responsibility, the
Company also helps Government by contributing donations in cash, providing protecting walkway gates to Islamabad
administration and rations to needy.

The management developed a coherent strategy to ensure that its entire staff, their families, customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders would remain safe while dealing with the company in their respective capacities. The SOP(s)
announced by the Government were implemented at all business locations of the Company.The measures taken
by the Company resulted in continued business operation serving its customers without any disruption.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQURE

Your company contributed around Rs. 2,055 Million in national exchequres as sales tax, federal excise duty and
income tax compared to Rs 2,027 Million of last year. Company also brought in foreign exchange of around US$
2.7 Million in the country by exporting cement. In addition to that the Company also paid and made contribution
to national exchequer on account of royalty payment and also collected and deposited income tax from its suppliers
and staff on behalf of FBR.

ENTITY CREDIT RATING

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has maintained ratings assigned to the Company as long term rating of A-
and short term A2 with stable outlook.

NOTICE OF RECOVERY

The auditors have drawn attention of the members to the Note 12.1.1 of financial statements in respect of
cancellation of mining lease and notice of recovery served on the Company by the Deputy Director (protection/forest)
Capital Development Authority (CDA) creating a demand of RS. 427 Million for alleged damage caused by the
Company's mining activities. The said notice was issued at the time when mining lease of the Company was cancelled
on March 15, 2015 by Director Industries and Labour, ICT, Islamabad and withdrawal of NOC by CDA.
The matter was raised before the Senior Magistrate CDA, Islamabad. The Company challenged the said notice on
the grounds that mining activities conducted by it were under valid license issued to it by the concerned authorities,
interalia, penalty has been without any prior notice and giving an opportunity of being heard to the Company,
further no basis is provided for calculating the damage.

The Senior Magistrate has issued an order whereby he has kept the matter pending till the disposal of Company's
appeal in higher forum challenging the cancellation of its mining lease. The Company is vigorously contesting the
cases of cancellation of mining lease and based on the legal opinion, believes that outcome of the matter will be
in favour of the Company and accordingly it won't be liable to pay this penalty as well.

Mining activities meanwhile are suspended; however, the Company has made alternate arrangements to continue
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its production and dispatch operations.
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Company believes that its best assets are the one who work for it and constant efforts are made to provide them
all facilities. Hence, management employee relations have always been very cordial and no industrial unrest has
ever been witnessed in the company.

AUDITORS

Present auditors M/s. Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have
offered them for re-appointment. The Audit Committee of the Board has also recommended their appointment
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2021 and Board would also like to endorse the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Statements showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2020 required Section 227(2)(f) of the Companies
Act, 2017 is annexed to this report at page No. 18.

APPROPRIATION
The appropriations approved by the Board are as follows:
Rupees in 000

Un appropriated profit brought forward 3,147,216
Loss after taxation for the year (770,071)
Available for appropriation 2,377,145
Appropriation:

Final Cash Dividend paid for the year ended 30 June 2019@ 5 % i.e. Rs. 0.50/= per share 25,080
Un appropriated profit carried forward 2,352,065
SUBSEQUENT EFFECT

Considering the fact that the Company has suffered losses during the year under review, the Board of Directors
in its meeting held on September 29, 2020 has decided not to recomned payment of dividend for the year.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the strenuous efforts and dedicated work of the
staff and workers and for the efforts made by the dealers in giving full support to our marketing policies. We would
also like to express our sincere thanks to all the financial institutions and banks for their continued support and
co-operation and regulations for their guidence.

On behalf of the Board

o oy

MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO ROHAIL AIMAL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Karachi: September 29, 2020.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING Annual Report 2020
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

Statements showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2020 required Section 227(2)(f) of
the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed to this report.

No. of Shareholding Total shares
Shareholders | From | To

392 1 100 8,910
499 101 500 151,878
689 501 1000 448,542
414 1001 5000 986,186
90 5001 10000 677,653
34 10001 15000 437,142
25 15001 20000 453,916
13 20001 25000 291,300
9 25001 30000 250,100
5 30001 35000 169,600
3 35001 40000 116,000
2 40001 45000 83,500
4 45001 50000 200,000
1 50001 55000 55,000
1 55001 60000 57,640
2 60001 65000 130,000
2 70001 75000 144,500
1 85001 90000 85,030
3 95001 100000 300,000
1 100001 105000 104,500
1 110001 115000 114,000
1 145001 150000 145,500
1 155001 160000 157,937
1 160001 165000 162,500
2 195001 200000 399,500
1 235001 240000 239,200
1 240001 245000 243,200
1 465001 470000 467,000
1 590001 595000 594,500
1 645001 650000 645,100
1 1125001 1130000 1,127,255
1 3035001 3040000 3,039,700
1 10190001 10195000 10,191,536
1 27480001 27485000 27,481,675
2205 50,160,000
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
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Shareholder’s Category Number of Number of
Shareholders Shares held
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties NIL NIL
NIT and ICP 4 1,131,395
Directors
Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto 2 37,673,211
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan 1 2,500
Mr. Khalid Yacoob 1 2,750
Mr. Aamir Ghani 1 2,750
Mr. Mohammad Anwar Habib 1 2,750
Ms. Saira Ibrahim Bawany 1 3,300
7 37,687,261
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance and Modarabas 10 4,242,691
Mutual Funds
CDC - Trustee NAFA Stock Fund 1 243,200
CDC - Trustee NAFA Islamic Asset Allocat 1 239,200
CDC - Trustee NAFA Islamic Pension Fund Equity Account 1 19,600
3 502,000
OTHERS
Foreign 1 162,500
Institutions 23 118,123
Trust/fund 4 185,079
Individuals - Local 2,153 6,130,951
2,181 6,596,653
Total 2,205 50,160,000
Detail of trading in shares by the Directors,
Chief Financial Officers, Company secretary and NONE NONE
their spouse and Minor Children
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto 37,673,211
Muslim Commercial Bank Limited - Treasury 3,039,700

There were no trading in shares during the year by any Directors, Chief Executive,Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary and Executives and their Spouses and Minor Children.

The term Executive includes employees having salary of more than Rs. 300,000/- per month.

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 19
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Year ended June 30 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
PRODUCTION SUMMARY (Tonnes)

Clinker production 599,016 593,312 744,402 789,904 661,103 703,677
Cement production 640,576 680,133 793,063 773,172 735,501 694,458
Cement despatches 641,450 682,612 791,555 771,662 736,671 694,132
PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY (Rupees in thousand unless stated otherwise)

Turnover (net) 3,463,904 4,740,496 4,902,784 5,130,744 5,031,622 4,779,145
Gross (Loss) / Profit (715,437) 594,303 1,027,305 1,556,776 1,623,450 1,465,349
(Loss) / Profit before tax (1,034,246) 130,343 599,628 1,091,511 1,158,876 899,636
BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

Paid up capital 501,600 501,600 501,600 501,600 501,600 501,600
General Reserve 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000
Accumulated Profit 2,352,065 3,147,216 3,158,561 2,842,223 2,181,850 1,869,625
Long term loan and lease finance 112,026 34,322 14,757 0 0 80,000
Deferred liabilities 33,430 355,892 341,866 377,960 403,944 436,830

Property, plant & equipment and
Right-of-use Assets 1,844,043 1,946,434 1,998,000 1,961,266

MISCELLANEOUS

Contribution to national

exchequer 2,055,000 2,027,000 2,216,000 2,136,328
Loss / Earnings per share (Rs.) (15.35) 1.77 8.81 15.30
Break up value per share (Rs.) 67.86 83.66 83.93 77.63
Current ratio 01:0.43 01:0.13 01:0.20 01:0.15
Debt/equity ratio 3:97 0.81:99 0.35:100 0:100
Dividend 0% 5% 20% 25%
P. E Ratio (1.36) 11.02 4.74 6.82
Divdend Payout Ratio 0.00% 28.25% 22.71% 16.34%

[l FECTO CEMENT LIMITED =)

1,867,644 1,957,505

1,108,922 967,700
16.22 12.31
64.46 58.24

01:0.20 01:0.36
0:100 3:97
70% 50%
7.12 5.65
43.15% 40.62%




STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES Annual Report 2020
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

M/s. Fecto Cement Limited (‘the Company') has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, (‘the Regulations) in the following manner:

1.  The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

Male 6
Female 1

2. The Composition of board is as follows:

Independent Directors Khalid Yacoob

Aamir Ghani

Jamil Ahmed Khan
Non-Executive Directors Mohammed Anwar Habib
Rohail Ajmal

Saira Ibrahim Bawani (Female)
Executive Directors Mohammed Yasin Fecto

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed
companies including this company;

4. The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct"” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6.  All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and these
Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman, and in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017
and Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board;

8.  The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Companies Act, 2017 and these Regulations;

9.  Up to the date of reporting period (i.e. June 30, 2020), the Board has arranged Directors training program
for the following directors:

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan

Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib
Mr. Rohail Ajmal

Mr. Khalid Yacoob

Mr. Aamir Ghani

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal

Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

Loy
3
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
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Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib Member
Mr. Rohail Ajmal Member
HR and REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Chairman
Mr. Khalid Yacoob Member
Mr. Mohammed Anwer Habib Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committees for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

Audit Committee Quarterly
HR and Remuneration Committee Annual

The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and
that they and their partners of the firm involved in the audit are not close relative ( spouse, parent,
dependent and non dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or a director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Companies Act 2017, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32 and 36 of the regulations have
been complied with.

AAMIR GHANI
CHAIRMAN

Karachi: September 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT Annual Report 2020
TO THE MEMBERS OF FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (‘the Regulations') prepared by the Board of Directors of M/s. Fecto Cement Limited (‘the
Company") for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or
to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures
and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance

does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Date: September 29, 2020 Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafiq
Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT Annual Report 2020
TO THE MEMBERS OF FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of M/s. Fecto Cement Limited (‘the Company'), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial
position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of the loss, total
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to note 12.1.1 to the financial statements which discloses the fact that, since March 2015, the Company
has been contesting, in Civil Court, Islamabad, a legal suit filed by it against the Director Minerals, Industries and Labour
Welfare, Islamabad Capital Territory for revocation of the mining license previously granted to the Company. In addition, it
states that the Company has also challenged before the Senior Special Magistrate CDA, Islamabad, a notice of recovery issued
to the Company by Deputy Director (Protection / Forest) whereby a demand of Rs. 427.05 million was created for the alleged
environmental damage caused by the Company through its mining activities. However, our opinion is not modified in respect
of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters are addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. However, we have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and the auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b)  the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity

with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) was deducted by the Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. Muhammad Waseem.

Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafiq
Chartered Accountants

Date: September 29, 2020
Karachi
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
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Note June 30 June 30,
2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000———
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital
75,000,000 (2019: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 750,000 750,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
50,160,000 (2019: 50,160,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 5 501,600 501,600
Revenue reserves
General reserve 550,000 550,000
Accumulated profit 2,352,065 3,147,216
Surplus on revaluation of investment in unquoted shares 104,346 132,751
3,006,411 3,829,967
3,508,011 4,331,567
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long term loan from a banking company 6 87,217 -
Liabilities against assets subject to lease 7 24,809 34,322
Deferred income - Government grant 8 10,476 -
Deferred taxation 9 33,430 355,892
155,932 390,214
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 527,345 320,896
Short term borrowing 11 570,514 -
Accrued mark-up 14,313 363
Unclaimed dividend 14,418 14,501
Unpaid dividend 328 185
Current maturity of long term loan from a banking company 6 23,581 -
Current maturity of lease liabilities 7 19,364 8,837
1,169,863 344,782
Contingencies and commitments 12
Total equity and liabilities 4,833,806 5,066,563
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,792,313 1,895,270
Right-of-use assets 14 51,730 51,164
Long term investments 15 284,350 319,650
Long term deposits 16 6,294 6,486
Long term loans and advances 17 10,756 12,606
2,145,443 2,285,176
Current assets
Stores and spares 18 811,535 765,829
Stock-in-trade 19 1,276,269 1,258,191
Trade debts 20 24,892 68,006
Short term investments 21 117,422 189,436
Short term loan to a related party 22 90,000 40,000
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and accrued markup 23 30,665 106,545
Taxation - net 219,889 189,025
Cash and bank balances 24 117,691 164,355
2,688,363 2,781,387
Total assets 5,066,563

4,833,806

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of the financial statements.

I I e

MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

;

ROHAIL AJMAL
DIRECTOR

ABDUL SAMAD
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
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Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000’
Turnover - net 25 3,463,904 4,740,496
Cost of sales 26 (4,179,341) (4,146,193)
Gross (loss) / profit (715,437) 594,303
Administrative expenses 27 (241,909) (290,472)
Distribution cost 28 (94,164) (203,122)
(336,073) (493,594)
Finance costs 29 (28,573) (5,377)
Other expenses 31 - (11,400)
(28,573) (16,777)
(1,080,083) 83,932
Other income 30 45,837 46,411
(Loss) / profit before taxation (1,034,246) 130,343
Provision for taxation:
- Current (50,391) (64,695)
- Prior - 454
- Deferred 314,566 22,873
32 264,175 (41,368)
(Loss) / profit after taxation (770,071) 88,975
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealized (loss) / gain on remeasurement of equity instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive income (36,300) 169,650
Related deferred tax thereon 7,895 (36,899)
(28,405) 132,751
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (798,476) 221,726
(Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted 33 (15.35) 1.77

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of the financial statements.

- S

ABDUL SAMAD
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ROHAIL AIMAL
DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Annual Report 2020
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

| Share Capital || Revenue Reserves || Total
Issued, General | Accumulated| Surplus on
Subscribed || Reserve Profit  |Revaluation of
& Paid up investment in
capital unquoted
shares
——Rupees in '000'
Balance as at June 30, 2018 501,600 550,000 3,158,561 - 4,210,161
Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30, 2019
- Profit after taxation - - 88,975 88,975

- Other comprehensive income - - - 132,751 132,751
- - 88,975 132,751 221,726

Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity

- Final cash dividend @ 20% for the
year ended June 30, 2018 - - (100,320) - (100,320)

Balance as at June 30, 2019 501,600 550,000 3,147,216 132,751 4,331,567

Total comprehensive loss for the
year ended June 30, 2020

- Loss after taxation - - (770,071) - (770,071)
- Other comprehensive loss - - - (28,405) (28,405)
- - (770,071) (28,405)  (798,476)

Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity
- Final cash dividend @ 5% for the year
ended June 30, 2019 - - (25,080) - (25,080)

Balance as at June 30, 2020 501,600 550,000 2,352,065 104,346 3,508,011

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of the financial statements.

QprS—

MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO ROHAIL AIMAL KéDUL SAMAD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

Interest income

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Amortization of deferred government grant
Realized capital (gain) / loss on short term investments
Unrealized loss on re-measurement of investments
Finance cost

Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes
Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debtors - considered good

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and accrued markup

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Taxes paid

Payment to Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Long term deposits

Long term loans and advances

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure

Long term investment

Proceeds from redemption of short term investment
Short term loan to associated company - net

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of principal against lease obligation

Long term loan received from a banking company

Finance cost paid

Short term borrowings - net

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of the financial statements.

e g

MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO ROHAIL AIMAL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000’
(1,034,246) 130,343
135,055 119,634
- 7,087
- 4,313
(35,899) (29,253)
(4,367) (12,369)
- (2,380)
(621) -
(4,414) 370
129 3,583
28,573 5,377
118,456 96,362
(915,790) 226,705
(45,706) 96,491
(18,078) 70,850
43,114 7,422
73,711 18,530
213,536 (286,984)
(649,213) 133,014
(81,255) (112,665)
(7,087) (32,203)
192 319
1,850 1,928
(735,513) (9,607)
(10,031) (42,685)
(1,000) (150,000)
80,666 24,020
(50,000) (40,000)
35,899 29,253
600 6,471
56,134 (172,941)
(20,050) (4,718)
121,895 -
(14,623) (5,120)
289,480 -
(25,021) (116,063)
351,681 (125,901)
(327,698) (308,449)
164,355 472,804
(163,343) 164,355

ABDUL SAMAD

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Annual Report 2020
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Fecto Cement Limited (‘the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan on February 28, 1981 as a public limited
company under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (Repealed with the enactment of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 on October 8, 1984 and subsequently by Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017) with its registered office
situated at 35-Darulaman Housing Society, Block 7/8, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, Sindh. The Company's Plant is
located at Sangjani village Sangjani, Islamabad-4400. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Company is production and sale of Ordinary Portland Cement.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

(@ Lease liability and the related right-of-use asset which are initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date.

(b)  Long term investment in unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited which
are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income; and

()  Short term investments in units of mutual funds and privately placed term finance certificates which are
carried at fair value through profit or loss.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved financial reporting standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
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may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Information about judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates and assumptions
with a significant risk of material adjustment in the future periods are as follows:

- Useful lives, depreciation method and residual values of property, plant and equipment (Note 4.6)
- Lease term and discount rate used to measure the right-of-use assets and the lease liability

- Unobservable inputs used in the valuation of long term investment in M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private)
Limited

- Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores and spares (Note 4.7)

- Discount rate used to determine the value of government grant element embedded in the long term
finance received from a commercial bank under the SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and
Salaries

- Provision for taxation (Note 4.19)
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations which became effective during the year
ended June 30, 2020

During the year, certain new accounting and reporting standards / amendments / interpretations became
effective and applicable to the Company. However, since such updates (except as disclosed in note 3.1.1 below)
were not considered to be relevant to the Company's financial reporting, the same have not been disclosed
here.

Initial application of IFRS 16 'Leases'
An overview of the new lease accounting requirements for lessees

With effect from July 01, 2019, the Company has adopted the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)
16 Leases which replaced the previous lease accounting requirements contained in 1AS 17 Leases IFRIC Interpretation
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC Interpretation 15 Operating Leases—Incentives
and SIC Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

IFRS 16 introduces a single on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees whereby, at the date of
commencement of lease, a lessee is required to recognize a right-of -use asset and a lease liability (except in
case short term leases and leases of low value assets). The right-of-use asset represents the lessee’'s right to use
an underlying asset during the lease term and the corresponding lease liability represents the lessee’s obligation
to make payments to the lessor for providing the right to use that asset. In the IASB's view, this new lessee
accounting model reflects the economics of a lease because, at the commencement date, a lessee obtains the
right to use an underlying asset for a period of time, and the lessor had delivered that right by making the asset
available for use by the lessee.
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The aforesaid new accounting model materially differs from the previous lease accounting requirements for
lessees whereby a lessee was required to classify its leases either as finance leases or operating leases based
on whether the risks and rewards incidental to ownership were substantially transferred to the lessee. Under
the previous standard, at the commencement of the lease term, the lessee recognized finance leases as assets
and liabilities in its statement of financial position. However, the lessee recognized the payments made under
operating leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis was
more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit.

Method of transition to the new lease accounting model

IFRS 16 specifies that a lessee shall apply the standard to its leases either retrospectively to each prior reporting
period presented applying IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (‘the full
retrospective method') or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate,
at the date of initial application without restating comparative information (‘the cumulative catch-up transition
method").

A - Leases previously classified as operating leases

The Company has applied IFRS 16 to the lease arrangements in which it is a lessee and which previously were
classified as operating leases under IAS 17 (i.e. leases of office premises) by following the cumulative catch-up
transition method and using the following practical expedients as permitted under paragraph C10 of IFRS 16:

(@ The Company has applied a single discount rate (i.e. its incremental borrowing rate of 15% per annum
as of July 01, 2019) to its portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics (such as leases with a
similar remaining lease term for a similar class of underlying asset in a similar economic environment);

(b) The Company has relied on its assessment of whether the aforesaid lease arrangements are onerous
applying IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as on June 30, 2019 as an alternative
to perform an impairment review of right-of-use asset. The said assessment performed by the Company
as on June 30, 2019 had not identified any onerous lease arrangements; and

(c)  The Company has excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application.

Because, in its financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company was not required to disclose
operating lease commitments under IAS 17, no such explanation as is required under paragraph C12(b) of IFRS
16 has been disclosed in these financial statements.

B - Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Company has applied IFRS 16 to the lease arrangements in which it is a lessee and which previously were
classified as finance leases under IAS 17 (i.e. leases of motor vehicles) by following the cumulative catch-up
transition method. Accordingly, the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the date
of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e. July 01, 2019) were measured at the carrying amount of the finance lease
asset and the finance lease obligation reported as of June 30, 2019.

Initial measurement of the right-of-use asset and the corresponding lease liability

As of the date of initial application (i.e. of July 01, 2019), the Company measured the right-of use asset and the
related lease liability (arising from its rights under lease arrangements existing as of that date) as follows:

(@  Aspermitted under paragraph C8(b) of IFRS 16, the Company measured the right-of-use asset at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of related prepaid lease payments recognized in its

}
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statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019.

(b)  The Company measured the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using its aforementioned incremental borrowing rate of 15% per annum as of July 01, 2019.

Accounting policies with respect to measurement of the right-of-use asset and the corresponding lease liability

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Company has changed its accounting policies with respect to initial and subsequent
measurement of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability. The revised accounting policies are stated in note
4.1 to the financial statements.

3.2 New/ revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting standards and interpretations that
are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after the date specified below;

- Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after January
01, 2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity
determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be
considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
include an election to use a concentration test. The application of the amendment is not likely to have
an impact on the Company's financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020).
The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in I1AS 1 easier to understand and are
not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the 1ASB has
also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Standards. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial
statements of the Company.

- Interest rate benchmark reform which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 is applicable for annual financial
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020. The G20 asked the Financial Stability Board (FSB) to
undertake a fundamental review of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review, the FSB published
a report setting out its recommended reforms of some major interest rate benchmarks such as IBORs.
Public authorities in many jurisdictions have since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This
has, in turn, led to uncertainty about the long-term viability of some interest rate benchmarks. In these
amendments, the term 'interest rate benchmark reform’ refers to the market-wide reform of an interest
rate benchmark including its replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, such as that resulting from
the FSB's recommendations set out in its July 2014 report '‘Reforming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks'
(the reform). The amendments made provide relief from the potential effects of the uncertainty caused
by the reform. A company shall apply the exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected by
interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the
Company.

- Amendments to IFRS-16- IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical
relief for lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning
on or after June 01, 2020, with earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s previous requirements,
lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised
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lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact
that many lessees are applying the standard for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has
provided an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required
to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account
for them as if they were not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient
if they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

(@ the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and
(c)  thereis no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.
The above amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) effective for the annual period
beginning on or after January 01, 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further
clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of
liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period
to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall
apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8. The amendments are not likely to
affect the financial statements of the Company.

- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual period
beginning on or after January 01, 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what
comprise the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether
a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required,
instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity,
as appropriate, at the date of initial application. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial
statements of the Company.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for the
annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are
recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those
items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of
deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively,
but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary
for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the
beginning of that earliest period presented. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements
of the Company.

- Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020:

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2022.
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- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity
(the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the
other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether
to derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding
the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment
is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of I1AS 41 for entities to exclude
taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The above amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except for the change in accounting
policy as described in note 3.1.1 to these financial statements:

4.1 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

A - Leases other than short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
(@ Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
(b) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present

value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
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depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

B - Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to those leases where the nature of the underlying
asset is such that, when new, the asset is typically not of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4.2 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

4.3  Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Y
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As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying
amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any
adjustments to the amount of previously recognised provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the provision was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any and subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities

"Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or ‘at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL).
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired
or when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially modified.

Property, plant and equipment

Operating assets

Operating assets are stated at cost (including where relevant related borrowing cost) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any, except for free hold land and capital stores which are stated at cost. Depreciation
on additions is charged for the month the asset is put to use and no depreciation is charged in the month of
disposal.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements
are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if any, are included in income currently.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss applying the straight line method at the rate specified below:
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Asset class Useful lives Residual values
Years) (% of cost)

Factory building 21.5-235 -
Non-factory building 21.5-235 -

Plant, machinery and equipment 7-235 5
Quarry transport equipment 8-10 5
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 0-5
Motor vehicles 5 10

Useful lives, depreciation methods and residual values are reassessed annually and change, if any, are applied
prospectively.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost including, where relevant, related financing costs less impairment losses,
if any. These costs are transferred to fixed assets as and when assets are available for use.

Capital spares

Items of spare parts are classified as capital spares when they meet in the definition of property, plant and
equipment provided in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Such
items are transferred to operating assets and depreciated when they are commissioned into the corresponding
item of plant or machinery (i.e. when they are replaced against worn out, obsolete or damaged parts).

4.7  Stores and spares
These are valued under the moving average cost method (less impairment loss if any) other than stores and
spares in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon less impairment
loss if any.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on management's
best estimate regarding their future usability.

4.8 Stock-in-trade
Stock-in-trade is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct

labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on
the basis of normal operating capacity. The cost formulas used for different classes of stock-in-trade are as

follows:
Raw materials and packing materials: First-in-first-out (FIFO) method
Work-in-process and finished goods: Weighted average cost determined on a Quarterly

basis

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on
each reporting date on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and
an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.
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Trade debts

These are carried at their transaction price less any allowance for lifetime expected credit losses. A receivable
is recognized when the goods are delivered to dealers as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term bank
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

Financial assets

Initial recognition, classification and measurement

The Company recognizes a financial asset when and only when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument evidencing investment. The Company classifies its financial assets into either of following
three categories:

(@) financial assets measured at amortized cost.

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

(c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

(@ Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A Financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model whose objective is to
hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and its contractual terms give rise on specifed dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue thereof.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI
A financial asset is classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when either:
(@) itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and its contractual terms give rise on specifed dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; or

(b) itisaninvestment in equity instrument which is designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income in accordance with the irrevocable election available to the Company at initial recognition.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue thereof.
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4.11.2 Subsequent measurement
(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest
method) less accumulated impairment losses.

Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI
These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in
accordance is recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified. When the
financial asset is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment (except for investments
in equity instruments which are designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income in
whose case the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is not
so reclassified). Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in profit or
loss.

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Net gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest income
accruing thereon are recognized in profit or loss.

4.11.3 Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses in respect of financial assets measured
at amortised cost.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'Simplified Approach’ to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'General Approach’ to measuring expected credit
losses whereby the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. However, if, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses.

The Company measures expected credit losses on trade receivables in a way that reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information at the
reporting date about the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. The
Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 4
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4.11.4 De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event.

4.12  Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle liability simultaneously.

4.13  Revenue recognition
Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods (cement) is recegnized when the customer obtains control of the goods, being
when the goods are delivered to the dealer, the dealer has full discretion over the selling price of the goods
subject to maximum retail price printed on bag and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
dealer's acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been dispatched from the Company
premises, the risk of loss has been transferred to the dealer, and either the dealer has accepted the goods
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have elapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Rebate on exports

Rebate on export sales is recognized in the period in which the related export sales revenue is recognized
unless there exist any specific facts and circumstances which indicate that receipt of the rebate amount
from the government is uncertain. In that case, the rebate income is recognized when it is realized.

4.14  Other income
Interest income

Return on bank deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and
at the rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividends received from investments measured at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of a part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
dividend is recognized in other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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Annual Report 2020

4.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash
Generating Units (CGUSs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of
the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised. A reversal of impairment loss for a cash generating unit is allocated to the assets
of the unit pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. The increase in the carrying amounts shall
be treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual assets and recognized in profit or loss unless the
asset is measured at revalued amount. Any reversal of impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated
as a revaluation increase.

416  Employee benefits
Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution plan (provident fund) for all its regular permanent employees.
Contributions are made equally by the Company and the employees as per the rules of the Fund.

Compensated absences

Provision for accumulating compensated absences, whether vesting or non-vesting, is recognized as the
employees render services that increase their entitlement to future paid absences to extent of maximum
30 days. Such provision is measured as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are recognized as expense in the period in which they occur.
4.17  Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Rupees at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at the rate of

exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. All exchange differences arising on transaction
are charged to the statement of profit or loss in that period.

§
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such
costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which
such costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and unused tax losses and credits.

Judgment and estimates

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding provision for
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
as these matters are being contested at various legal forums. The Company recognizes liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Further, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to
reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits to allow the benefit of
part or all of that recognised deferred tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction shall be reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of Shares) Rupees in ‘000——

45,600,000 45,600,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 456,000 456,000
issued as fully paid in cash
4,560,000 4,560,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 45,600 45,600
issued as fully paid bonus shares
50,160,000 50,160,000 501,600 501,600

51 The Company does not have any agreements with shareholders for voting rights, board selection, rights
of first refusal and block voting.

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

6 LONG TERM LOAN FROM A BANKING COMPANY

Financing under SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment
of Salaries and Wages

Total amount borrowed 121,895 -
Less: element of government grant recognized as

deferred income 8 (11,097) -

110,798 -

Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (23,581) -

87,217 -

In June 2020, the Company obtained a long term financing facility amounting to Rs. 121.89 million from
Askari Bank Limited under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP's) Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and
Salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business Concerns notified vide IH & SMEFD Circular No. 7 of
2020 dated April 22, 2020. The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:

(@) The applicable markup rate is 3% per annum;
(b) The tenor of the facility is 2.5 years (including 6-month grace period ending on December 31, 2020);

and
(c) Theloanis to be repaid in 8 equal quarterly instalments commencing from January 2021.

|
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Since the facility carries an interest rate of 3% p.a. which is well below the market interest rate of 9.26%
(determined as 3-Month KIBOR as at June 30, 2020 plus 2%), in accordance with Circular 11 of 2020 dated
August 17, 2020 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), the financing is
considered to contain an element of government grant as per the 1AS-20 "Accounting for Government
Grants and disclosure of Government Assistance™ (the standard). Accordingly, the Company measured the
loan liability at its fair value of Rs. 110.80 million (determined on a present value basis) and recognized the
difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank and the said fair value, amounting
to Rs. 11.09 million, as deferred income in the statement of financial position. Subsequently, this deferred
income shall be recognized as other income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest
cost on the outstanding loan balance (based on the effective interest rate method).

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——
7 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO LEASE
Opening balance 43,159 18,403
Lease obtained during the year - 29,474
Initial application of IFRS-16 on rental properties 21,064 -
Payments made during the year (20,050) (4,718)
44,173 43,159
Current maturity shown under current liabilities (19,364) (8,837)
Non Current Portion 24,809 34,322
8 DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANT
Deferred income -Government grant 6 11,097 -
Less: Amortized during the year 30 (621) -
10,476 -
9 DEFERRED TAXATION
Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of :
Accelerated tax depreciation 288,949 322,232
Unrealized gain on long term investment 29,003 36,899
Unrealized gain on short term investment 20 52
Financing under SBP refinance scheme 2,824 -
Right-of-use assets and related lease liability 1,923 2,123
Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of :
Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares (3,818) (3,978)
Provision for bad debts (255) (1,436)
Deferred government grant (2,666) -
Unused tax losses and tax credits (282,550) -
33,430 355,892
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Note 2020

10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors for goods and services:

2019

Rupees in ‘000——

Other creditors 81,643 34,948
Associated company 41,955 16,216

123,598 51,164
Accrued expenses 17,994 47,946
Provision for marking fee 101 54,359 50,823
Provision for compensated absences 10.2 26,536 25,192
Payable to provident fund 3,896 4,093
Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable 10.3 - 7,087
Worker's Welfare Fund payable 104 43,282 43,282
Advances from customers and dealers - unsecured 10.5 55,471 51,641
Security deposits payable 10.6 10,355 10,297
Excise duty payable 126,358 5,779
Sales tax payable 39,762 1,411
Withholding income tax 5,672 3,231
Other liabilities 20,062 18,950

527,345 320,896

10.1  This represents an amount payable to Pakistan Standards & Quality Control Authority (PSQCA) against
marking fee for the period from July 2007 till the reporting date amounting to Rs. 54.359 million
(2019: Rs. 50.823 million).
2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

10.2  Provision for compensated absences

Opening balance 25,192 56,861
Charge for the year - net of reversals 3,340 4,464
Payments made during the year (1,996) (36,133)
Closing balance 26,536 25,192

10.2.1 With effect from July 01, 2019, the Company changed its policy with respect to employees' leave entitlement
and encashment whereby casual and sick leaves allowed to employees shall no longer be carried forward
and shall be treated as lapsed if not availed during the year. However, annual leaves to the extent of
maximum 30 days shall continue to be accumulated and encashment shall be allowed to employees only
at the time of leaving the Company.

2020 2019

Rupees in ‘000——

10.3  Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable

Opening balance 7,087 32,203
Allocation for the year - 7,087
7,087 39,290
Less: Payment during the year (7,087) (32,203)
- 7,087
10.4  Worker's Welfare Fund payable

Opening balance 43,282 38,969
Provision for the year - 4,313

Adjustment during the year - -
43,282 43,282

;
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Advances from customers and dealers - unsecured

During the year, the performance obligations underlying the opening contract liability of Rs. 51.641 million
were satisfied in full. Accordingly, the said liability was recorded as revenue during the year.

Information regarding the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the closing contract
liability of Rs. 55.471 million is not presented since the expected duration of all the contracts entered into
with the customers is less than one year.

Security deposits payable

The Company has not utilized any amount from the security deposits collected from cement dealers for
its business purposes.

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Running Finance 111 281,034 -
Export Re-Finance 11.2 195,000 -
Finance against Imported Merchandise / Trust Receipt 11.3 94,480 -

570,514 -

The Company has a total finance facility of Rs. 520 million (30 June 2019: Rs. 670 million) from various
banks. These arrangements are secured by way of first pari passu charge over all the Company's movable
and immovable properties and hypothecation of Company's stock-in-trade, stores and spares, book
debts, machinery, and personal guarantee of sponsoring director of the Company. The rate of mark-up
ranges from 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% (30 June 2019 : 3 months KIBOR plus 3%) per annum. The facilities
are valid upto 31 December, 2020.

The Company has obtained Export Refinance Facility of Rs.300 million from a commercial bank. The facility
is secured by way of 1st pari passu charge of Rs. 466.66 million on Current and Fixed Asset (including Land
& Building, Plant & Machinery) of the company (including of 25% margin) located at Sangjani plant district
Islamabad .The export refinance facility carries mark-up at State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate plus 1.00% per
annum. This facility is valid till upto October 31, 2020.

The Company has obtained Finance against Trust receipt and Import merchandise (FATR) facility from a
commercial bank amounting to Rs. 100 million . The facility is secured by way of 1st pari passu hypothecation
charge of Rs. 334 million over all present and future current asset of the Company duly insured in the
bank's favour covering all risks registered with the SECP, lien on import documents with BL to the order
of the bank. The facility carries mark-up at rate at 3 months KIBOR plus 1.50% per annum. This facility is
valid upto till March 31, 2021.

As of reporting date, the Company has unutilized facilities for short term borrowings available from various
banks amounted to Rs. 350 million (2019: Rs. 1,270 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
On March 17, 2015, the Company received a letter from Director Minerals, Industries and Labour Welfare

Islamabad Capital Territory (ICT) informing the Company that the lease issued to it for mining had been
cancelled in pursuance of the orders of the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (‘the Apex Court') dated
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March 16, 2015. Subsequently, in March 2015, the Company filed a review petition in the Apex Court
against the order passed by it. In March 2018, the Apex Court disposed off the review petition with an
observation that since civil suits against demarcation of land and cancellation of lease are pending for
adjudication in the Civil Court, Islamabad, the concerned court shall decide the case on its merit and any
observation made by the Apex Court shall not cause prejudice to the petitioner i.e. the Company. Based
on the opinion of the concerned legal counsel, management believes that the ultimate outcome of the
aforesaid litigation pending in the Civil Court, Islamabad would be in favour of the Company.

Furthermore, on December 06, 2018, the Apex Court issued its final order in a connected case, Suo Moto
no. 5 of 2016, whereby tree cutting in Margalla National Park was disallowed. Though the Company was
not a party to the aforesaid Suo Moto case, subsequently, it filed a Constitutional Review Petition (CRP)
before the Apex Court against its aforesaid order since it was aggrieved by the verdict of the Apex Court.
As on June 30, 2019, the said CRP was pending for adjudication. Based on the opinion of the concerned
legal counsel, the Company has a good prima facie case; although the ultimate outcome cannot be predicted
with any degree of certainty.

In addition to above, on March 19, 2015, a notice of recovery was served on the Company by Deputy
Director (Protection/Forest) creating a demand of Rs. 427.050 million for the alleged damage caused by
the Company’s mining activities and raised the matter before the Senior Special Magistrate CDA, Islamabad.

The Company challenged the recovery notice on the grounds that mining activities conducted by it were
under valid lease issued to it by the authorities. Moreover, the penalty has been without any prior notice
and without giving the Company an opportunity of being heard. The Company also challenged the fact that
penalty has been imposed without any basis for calculating the damage.

The Court of Senior Special Magistrate CDA, Islamabad in its order dated October 13, 2016 has decided
that as the case is pending in the higher forum (i.e. Civil Court, Islamabad), the matter will remain sub-
judice in the Court of Senior Special Magistrate CDA, Islamabad till the final verdict is announced by the
Civil Court, Islamabad. The Company is confident that the matter will be decided in its favour.

12.1.2 The Competition Commission of Pakistan took Suo Moto action under Competition Commission Ordinance,
2007 and issued a Show Cause Notice on October 28, 2008 for increase in prices of cement across the
country. Similar notices were also issued to All Pakistan Cement Manufacturers Association (APCMA) and
its member cement manufacturers. The Company filed a writ petition before the Honorable Lahore High
Court (LHC), the LHC wide its order dated August 24, 2009 allowed the CCP to issue its final order. The CCP
accordingly passed an order on August 27, 2009 and imposed a penalty of Rs. 174.063 million on the
Company. The Lahore High Court vide its order dated August 31, 2009 restrained the CCP from enforcing
its order against the Company for the time being.

During the financial year ended June 30, 2010, the Company has filed an appeal before the Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan and Lahore High Court against the Order of the CCP dated August 27, 2009.The
petition filed by the Company and other cement manufacturers before the Lahore High Court are also
pending for adjudication meanwhile order passed by the Lahore High Court on August 31, 2009 is still
operative.

During the year 2018, the Supreme Court of Pakistan remanded the case back to the Competition Appellate
Tribunal (CAT). The Company has filed petition in the Sindh High Court in relation to constitution mechanism
of the tribunal, wherein the Sindh High Court granted stay against the notice. The SHC has ordered CAT
not to pass a final order, till the case is decided. The Company’s legal counsel is confident that the Company
has a good case and there are reasonable chances of success, hence, no provision for the above is made
in these financial statements. During the year the Lahore High Court after hearing the arguments of all the
parties has reserved its judgement on the matter on July 17,2020.
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For the tax year 2013, notice under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was issued by the
Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) creating the demand of Rs. 3.2 million in respect of certain
inadmissible expenses. Subsequently, the Company filed an appeal against the said notice before the
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals I) [CIR(A)] who decided the case in favour of DCIR. Finally, the
Company filed an appeal against the order of the CIR(A) before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR). As of the reporting date, the case was still pending before ATIR for adjudication and no hearing was
held till that date.

The Company received a show cause notice dated January 16, 2015 from Deputy Commissioner Inland
Revenue (DCIR) - Karachi alleging that the Company is suppressing the sales / supply of cement for the tax
year 2013 and 2014, and accordingly sales tax and Federal Excise Duty (FED) is also suppressed by Rs.
450.111 million and Rs. 131.675 million respectively. In response to the said notice, the Company justified
its position and responded the matters raised in the said notice. On September 9, 2015, ACIR passed an
order creating a demand for the recovery of sales tax and FED of Rs. 293.786 and Rs. 87.965 respectively.

The Company instituted an appeal on November 11, 2015 against the demand raised by ACIR before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA) and decision was made by CIRA via an order dated December
11, 2015 whereby the order against the Company was annulled as being defective on legal as well as factual
grounds including the fact that such order was time barred.

The order of Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) has been challenged by the department before
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue however, no hearings have been conducted over the matter. The Company
based on the opinion of its sales tax advisor is confident that the matter will be decided in its favour and
accordingly no amount would become payable in respect of these matters.

The Finance Act, 2018 introduced further amendments in section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
According to the said amended version of section 5A, for tax year 2017 and onwards, a tax shall be imposed
at the rate of 5% of its accounting profit before tax on every public company, other than a scheduled bank
or a modaraba, that derives profit for a tax year but does not distribute at least 20% of its after tax profits
within six months of the end of the tax year through cash.

Subsequent to the above referred amendments brought in by the Finance Act, 2018, section 5A was once
again amended in March 2019 through the promulgation of Finance Supplementary (Second Amendment)
Act, 2019 whereby the imposition of the tax on undistributed profits was restricted to the tax years 2017
to 2019.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, cash dividend paid by the Company, in respect of the financial year
ended June 30, 2017, amounted to Rs. 125.4 million. Based on this amount, the dividend distribution rate
for the FY 2016-17 comes to 16.5% of the after tax profits for that year which is below the minimum
required distribution rate of 20%, as noted above. This short payment of dividend exposes the Company
to an additional income tax liability of Rs. 54.575 million (i.e. 5% of the Company's accounting profit before
tax for the financial year ended June 30, 2017).

However, in view of the Constitutional Petition (CP) already filed by the Company before the Honourable
High Court of Sindh (SHC) challenging the vires of section 5A and seeking SHC to declare the impugned
section ultra vires the Constitution of Pakistan, and given the fact that stay on the matter had been granted
by SHC to the Company on September 25, 2017, no provision for the aforesaid exposure amount of Rs.
54.575 million has been recognized in these financial statements.

Commitments

Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 23.672 million
(June 30, 2019: Rs. 121.015 million).
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Note 2020 2019
—Rupees in ‘'000——
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 13.1 1,613,177 1,702,834
Capital work in progress 13.2 - -
Capital spares 13.3 179,136 192,436
1,792,313 1,895,270
Operating fixed assets
Quarry Furniture,
Freehold Factory Non-factory Plant and transport fixtures & Motor Total
Land building building machinery equipments equipments Vehicles
Rupees in 000
AsAs at June 30, 2018
Cost 225,923 327,715 234,988 3,272,495 124,814 58,445 117,625 4,362,005
Accumulated depreciation - (261,101) (92,521) (1,966,546) (112,165) (45,470) (83,790) (2,561,593)
225,923 66,614 142,467 1,305,949 12,649 12,975 33,835 1,800,412
Year ended June 30, 2019
Opening net book value 225,923 66,614 142,467 1,305,949 12,649 12,975 33,835 1,800,412
Additions / transfers - - 2,660 7,127 - 127 9,383 19,297
Disposals
Cost - - - - - (90) (16,254) (16,344)
Accumulated depreciation| - - - - - 25 12,228 12,253
- - - - - (65) (4,026) (4,091)
Depreciation for the year - (5,277) (7,550) (82,222) (2,091) (3,079) (12,665) (112,784)
Closing net book value 225,923 61,437 137,577 1,230,854 10,558 9,958 26,527 1,702,834
As at June 30, 2019
Cost 225,923 327,715 237,648 3,279,622 124,814 58,482 110,754 4,364,958
Accumulated depreciation - (266,278) (100,071) (2,048,768) (114,256) (48,524) (84,227) (2,662,124)
225,923 61,437 137,577 1,230,854 10,558 9,958 26,527 1,702,834
Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening net book value 225,923 61,437 137,577 1,230,854 10,558 9,958 26,527 1,702,834
Additions / transfers - - - 17,303 6,028 - - 23,331
Disposals
Cost - - - - - - (2,035) (2,035)
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - 1,435 1,435
- - - - - - (600) (600)
Depreciation for the year - (5,177) (7,588) (82,104) (7,126) (2,977) (7,415) (112,387)
Closing net book value 225,923 56,260 129,989 1,166,053 9,460 6,981 18,512 1,613,177
As at June 30, 2020
Cost 225,923 327,715 237,648 3,296,925 130,842 58,482 108,719 4,386,254
Accumulated depreciation - (271,455) (107,659) (2,130,872) (121,382) (51,501) (90,207) (2,773,077)
225,923 56,260 129,989 1,166,053 9,460 6,981 18,512 1,613,177
Note 2020 2019
13.1.1 Allocation of depreciation expense Rupees in “000°
Excavation / transportation cost 22,118 17,363
Manufacturing cost 26 78,219 79,627
Administrative expenses 27 5,666 8,344
Distribution cost 28 6,384 7,450
112,387 112,784
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13.1.2 Freehold land represents 200.18 acres of land situated at Sangjiani Village Sangjiani, Islamabad on which
factory and non factory buildings are constructed. The property is utilized as manufacturing facility for the
production of cement.

Further, it comprises land of 1,598.33 sq. yds. situated at House # 339, west ridge 1, Peshawar road,
Rawalpindi. The property is utilized as marketing office of the Company.

2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

13.2  Capital work in progress
Building and others
Opening balance - 2,469
Additions during the year - non-factory building - 191
- 2,660
Transfers to operating fixed assets - (2,660)
Closing balance - -
13.3  Capital spares
Opening balance 192,436 173,468
Additions during the year 4,003 18,968
Transfers to operating fixed assets (17,303) -
Closing balance 179,136 192,436
14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Rented Rented Leased Total
property in property in vehicles
Karachi Islamabad
(Note 14.1) (Note 14.2)
Rupees in '000
As at June 30, 2018
Cost - - 25,030 25,030
Accumulated depreciation - - (3,379) (3,379)
- - 21,651 21,651
Movement during the year
ended June 30, 2019
Opening net book value - - 21,651 21,651
Additions - - 36,363 36,363
Depreciation for the year - - (6,850) (6,850)
Closing net book value - - 51,164 51,164
As at June 30, 2019
Cost - - 61,393 61,393
Accumulated depreciation - - (10,229) (10,229)
- - 51,164 51,164
Movement during the year
ended June 30, 2020
Opening net book value - - 51,164 51,164
Effect of initial application of IFRS 16 11,440 11,793 - 23,233
Depreciation for the year (5,720) (5,897) (11,051) (22,667)
Closing net book value 5,720 5,896 40,113 51,730
As at June 30, 2020
Cost 11,440 11,793 61,393 84,626
Accumulated depreciation (5,720) (5,897) (21,280) (32,896)
5,720 5,896 40,113 51,730
Depreciation rate (per annum) 50% 50% 20%
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14.1 The terms and conditions of the lease contracts entered into for the aforementioned premises are as
follows:
Particulars Rented property | Rented property
in Karachi in Islamabad
Lessor name Humera Nadeem & | Nasreen Abbas
Maryam llyas
Lease agreement date 15-Jul-18 18-Nov-16
Lease commencement date 01-Jul-19 18-Nov-16
Initial contracted term of the lease 11 Months 11 Months
Availability of extension option Yes Yes
No. of years for which the lease extension option is available Indefinite Indefinite
Estimated remaining lease term (as on July 01, 2019) used for
the purpose of measuring the right-of-use asset and the
corresponding lease liability - Refer note 14.1.1 2 years 2 years
14.1.1 The remaining lease term (as on July 01, 2019) used in the measurment of the right-of-use asset and the
related lease liability has been estimated as noted above since the Company, after giving due consideration
to the factors that might create an economic incentive for the Company to extend the leases, has concluded
that, as of the date of initial application of IFRS 16, it was not reasonably certain to exercise the said
extension options for periods beyond June 2021 (in relation to rented property in Karachi) and November
2021 (in relation to rented property in Islamabad).
14.2  The terms and conditions of the lease contracts entered into for the aforementioned vehicles are as
follows:
Lease contract no. 121710500008 121810500014 121902500027
Lessor name Askari Bank Limited Askari Bank Limited | Askari Bank Limited
Availability of extension option No No No
First installment payable on 6-Nov-17 3-Dec-18 12-Apr-19
Last installment payable on 6-Oct-22 1-Nov-23 12-Mar-24
Total number of installments 60 60 60
Rental payment frequency Monthly Monthly Monthly
Markup rate 6 month KIBOR + 2% | 6 month KIBOR +2% | 3 month KIBOR + 2%
Nature of the leased assets Motor Vehicles Motor Vehicles Motor Vehicles
Number of the leased assets 1 3 1
Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——
15 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
At cost
Investment in Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited
- a subsidiary 15.1 1,000 -
At fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited
- a related party 15.2 283,350 319,650
284,350 319,650
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Investment in Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited - a subsidiary

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of Shares) Rupees in ‘000=——

100,000 - Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000 -

In February 2020, the Company got its new subsidiary company incorporated in the name and style of M/s.
Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited (‘FCNL"). The authorized and paid up capital of FCNL is Rs. 2
million and Rs. 1 million, respectively, which is presently wholly owned by the Company. The principal
activity of FCNL is to produce and deal in all kinds of cement and its allied products; however, FCNL has
not yet commenced its business operations. The registered office of FCNL is situated at 35, Darul Aman
Housing Society, Block 7/8, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Mr. Mohammad Yasin Fecto, the majority shareholder
and director of the Company, also serves on the Board of Directors of FCNL.

In accordance with the provisions of section 228(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company is required
to prepare, for the first time, the consolidated financial statements of the group (comprising the Company
and the aforementioned subsidiary company) for the year ended June 30, 2020. However, keeping in view
the fact that FCNL has not yet commenced its business operations and, at the reporting date, it had no
material assets or liabilities, the Company, under section 228(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, applied to
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for seeking exemption from the requirement
to prepare consolidated financial statements. The said exemption has been granted by the SECP vide its
letter EMD/233/377/2002-170 dated September 21,2020 issued to the Company.

As per unaudited financial statements of FCNL for the first period ended June 30, 2020, as of the reporting
date, FCNL had no assets or liabilities except for the cash balance held in a bank account, amounting to
Rs. 1 million representing the initial capital injection made by the Company in the form of equity. Further,
during its first reporting period (i.e. the period from the date of incorporation till June 30, 2020), FCNL
neither generated any revenues nor incurred any expenses.

The aforementioned unaudited financial statements of FCNL shall be available for inspection at the registered
office of the Company and shall be sent to the members on request without any cost.

Investment in Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited - a related party

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of Shares) Rupees in ‘000

15,000,000 15,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each-at cost 150,000 150,000
Unrealized gain/(loss) on remeasurement:

-Opening balance 1,69,650 -

-(Loss)/gain recognize during the year (36,300) 169,650

133,350 169,650

283,350 319,650

In 2019, the Company made an investment in 15 million unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. Frontier Papers
Products (Private) Limited (FPPL), its associated company in terms of section 2(4) of the Companies Act,
2017), at a par value of Rs. 10 each. This investment gives the Company 49.21% voting power in FPPL.
However, since Mr.Mohammad Yasin Fecto holds the remaining voting power (i.e. 50.79%) in FPPL and also
exercises control over the Company (by virtue of his majority shareholding in the Company), the Company
is not able to exercise significant influence over FPPL and, accordingly, has not applied the equity method
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of accounting as described in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures.

In accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 Financial Instruments, the
Company has elected to designate the investment at fair value through other comprehensive income since
it is in the nature of a long-term strategic investment made with a view to further strengthen the existing
customer supplier relationship with FPPL.

As of June 30, 2020, the Company revalued its investment in ordinary shares of FPPL based on the Discounted
Free Cash Flow to Equity method of business valuation. According to such valuation, the fair value of the
net assets of FPPL was determined to be Rs. 18.89 per share (2019: 21.31 per share).

During the year ended June 30, 2020, FPPL did not declare any dividends (2019: None).
LONG TERM DEPOSITS

This includes security deposits maintained with certain government authorities and suppliers / vendors
of the Company.

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Long term loans - unsecured, considered good

- Employees - interest free 4,504 3,020
- Executives - interest free 17.1 1,735 285
6,239 3,305

Advances to dealers - secured, considered good 17.2 12,925 14,425
19,164 17,730

Less: Current maturity shown under current assets (8,408) (5,124)
10,756 12,606

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives of the Company at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 1.735 million (2019: Rs. 0.335 million). The loan to executives and employees are in accordance
with the terms of their employment.

These represent advances provided to major cement dealers for onward supply of cement and is secured
against truck ownership documents.

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——
STORES AND SPARES
Stores - in hand 283,725 164,611
- in transit 31,073 136,743
Spares 18.1 511,737 479,475
Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares (15,000) (15,000)

811,535 765,829

Spares mainly comprise of consumable spare parts held by the Company for the purpose of maintenance
of the plant to ensure continuous operations of the plant. Further, during the last year, the Company has

Loy
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identified capital spares and re-classified such items to the head 'Property, plant and equipment’ .

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——
19 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material 981,522 933,625
Packing material 28,664 21,208
Work in process 231,816 266,851
Finished goods 34,267 36,507
1,276,269 1,258,191
20 TRADE DEBTS
Local receivables - unsecured
Considered good 24,892 68,006
Considered doubtful 880 4,951
25,772 72,957
Provision for doubtful debts (880) (4,951)
24,892 68,006
21 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Units of open-end mutual funds:
Cost 17,393 89,258
Unrealised gain on remeasurement 79 208
21.1 17,472 89,466
Privately Placed Term Finance Certificates 21.2 99,950 99,970
117,422 189,436
21.1  Investment units of open-end mutual funds
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of Shares) Name of the Fund Cost Market Cost Market
value value
(Rupees in ‘000)
1,265,506 5,409,527 NAFA Income Opportunity Fund 13,539 13,610 57,842 58,046
38,431 313,440 UBL Al-ameen Islamix Cash Fund (AICF) 3,854 3,862 31,416 31,420
17,393 17472 89,258 89,466
2020 2019

21.1.1 Unrealized gain / (loss) on the revaluation of investment

Cumulative gain at the beginning of the year - net
Net loss for the year
Cumulative gain at the end of the year - net

Rupees in ‘000——

208 3,791
(129) (3,583)
79 208

21.2  These represents investment in unsecured Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) issued by Silk Bank Limited
carrying markup rate of 6-month KIBOR plus 1.85% (2019: 6-month KIBOR plus 1.85%). Repayments,

including principal and markup, are made semi annually.
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2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

22 SHORT TERM LOAN TO A RELATED PARTY

Loan to Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited 90,000 40,000

22.1  In their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 01, 2018, the shareholders of the Company
resolved that an unsecured short term running finance facility (subject to the maximum limit of Rs. 100
million) be provided by the Company to M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited (FPPL), its related

party.

Further, as required by the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations, 2017, the rate of return on the above financing facility is the higher of the applicable KIBOR
rate and the borrowing cost of the Company.

22.2  Maximum loan outstanding during the year amounted to Rs. 90 million (2019: Rs. 50 million).

2020 2019
Note Rupees in ‘000———
23 LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND ACCRUED MARKUP
Current maturity and overdue portion of long term loans -
unsecured, considered good 17 8,408 5,124
Advances to suppliers and contractors - unsecured,
considered good 2,768 6,012
Accrued markup 40 8,489 4,159
Margin against bank guarantee 23.1 11,000 11,000
Advance sales tax and federal excise duty - 78,080
Prepayments - 2,170
30,665 106,545

23.1  Thisrepresents 10 % (2019: 10%) margin given to Silk Bank Limited against the bank guarantee of Rs.110
million (2019: Rs. 110 million) issued in favour of Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited as security for the
payment of gas bills.

2020 2019
Note Rupees in ‘000——
24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 718 652
Cash at bank
in current accounts 53,498 74,419
in savings and deposit accounts 24.1 63,475 89,284

117,691 164,355

24.1  The return on these balances ranges from 4% to 5% (2019: 5% to 9% ) per annum on daily product basis.
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Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——
25 TURNOVER - NET

Sales - local 5,098,617 6,281,400
Less: Trade discounts (91,101) (34,783)
Federal excise duty (1,142,212) (924,475)
Sales tax (831,565) (989,754)
(2,064,878) (1,949,012)

3,033,739 4,332,388

Export sales 423,029 402,295
Export rebate 7,136 5,813
430,165 408,108

3,463,904 4,740,496

26 COST OF SALES
Raw and packing material consumed:

Opening stock 954,833 846,140
Purchases 621,105 595,867
Excavation / Transportation cost 26.1 125,065 220,088
1,701,003 1,662,095

Closing stock (1,010,186) (954,833)
690,817 707,262

Fuel and power 2,774,859 2,513,219
Stores and spares consumed 120,645 140,809
Salaries, wages and benefits 26.2 375,286 418,659
Insurance 26,727 26,555
Repairs and maintenance 5,784 10,446
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 13.11 78,219 79,627
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 2,763 1,712
Other manufacturing overheads 66,966 68,361
4,142,066 3,966,650

Opening work-in-process 266,851 441,613
Closing work-in-process (231,816) (266,851)
35,035 174,762

Cost of goods manufactured 4,177,101 4,141,412
Opening finished goods 36,507 41,288
Closing finished goods (34,267) (36,507)
2,240 4,781

4,179,341 4,146,193

Annual Report 2020

26.1  Excavation cost includes salaries, wages and benefits and Company's contribution to provident fund
amounting to Rs. 29 million (2019: Rs. 34.405 million) and Rs. 1.232 million (2019: Rs. 1.083 million).

26.2  Thisincludes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 12.415 million (2019: Rs. 12.929
million).

(| FECTO CEMENT LIMITED =)




27

27.1

27.2

27.2

27.3

27.4

;

Annual Report 2020

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 27.1 149,157 176,201
Traveling and conveyance 5,011 8,000
Vehicles running expenses 11,079 10,387
Communications 2,409 2,610
Printing and stationery 1,151 1,128
Rent, rates and taxes 638 11,864
Utilities 10,376 9,249
Repairs and maintenance 1,983 2,291
Legal and professional charges 21,792 35,396
Auditors' remuneration 27.2 1,100 1,100
Donation 271.3&27.4 5,140 8,919
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 1311 5,666 8,344
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 17,142 3,425
Initial expenditure on new manufacturing plant 435 289
Bad debts 277 -
Books and periodicals 390 627
Entertainment 1,140 1,512
Fees and subscription 2,348 2,232
Freight 309 -
Insurance 236 236
Overheads 1,630 2,642
Spares and general item consumption 2,274 1,699
Miscellaneous 226 2,321
241,909 290,472

This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 5.758 million (2019: Rs. 5.927
million).

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 850 850

Half yearly review 150 150

Other services 27.2.1 100 100
1,100 1,100

.1 This represents the fee charged by the auditors for issuance of review report on Statement of Compliance
contained in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in the donee institutions.

There is no single party to whom the donation exceeds the higher of 10% of the Company's total amount
of donation expense for the year or Rs. 1 million.
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Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

28 DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, wages and benefits 28.1 37,215 46,518
Commission 30,697 126,749
Export expenses 2,263 2,192
Traveling and conveyance 499 641
Vehicles running expenses 3,481 3,330
Communications 987 910
Rent, rates and taxes 993 1,542
Repairs and maintenance 591 1,061
Advertisement 64 63
Marking fee 3,536 4,782
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 13.1.1 6,384 7,450
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 2,210 1,370
Printing and stationary 1,147 1,472
Insurance 17 16
Entertainment 739 731
Fees and subscription 38 581
Fuel and power 2,592 2,519
Spares and general items consumed 553 894
Miscellaneous 158 301

94,164 203,122

28.1  This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 1.921 million (2019: Rs.1.925
million) .
2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

29 FINANCE COSTS

Markup on leases 7,916 3,189

Markup on short term borrowings:

- Running finance 15,358 12

- Export Refinance Scheme 498 -

- Finance against Trust Receipt 1,589 -
17,445 12

Markup on long term borrowing 516 -

Bank commission and charges 2,696 2,176
28,573 5,377
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32.1

32.2

Note

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Markup on bank deposits
Markup on term finance certificates
Markup on loan to associated company
Unrealized (loss) / gain on remeasurement
of short term investment 21.1.1
Realized capital gain/(loss) on short term investments
Dividend income on short term investments

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets

Scrap sales

Amortization of deferred government grant 8
Miscellaneous

OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund

TAXATION

Relationship between income tax expense and
accounting profit before taxation

Accounting profit before tax

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2019: 29%)

Tax effect of:

- prior year tax

- income subject to taxation under final tax regime

- permanent difference

- minimum tax

- unused tax losses and tax credits

- change in the ratio of income assessed under normal
and final tax regime

Others
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2020

2019

Rupees in ‘000——

9,257 16,497
15,392 10,804
11,251 1,952

(129) (3,583)
4,414 (370)
4,367 12,369
44,552 37,669
- 2,380
662 6,354
621 -
2 8
1,285 8,742
45,337 46,411
- 7,087
- 4,313
- 11,400
(1,034,246) 130,343
(299,931) 37,799
- (454)
46,409 (5,364)
1,308 -
284,016 -
(282,550)
10,378
(12,867)
(560) (991)
(264,175) 41,368

The income tax assessments of the Company have been deemed to be finalised up to and including the
tax year 2018 with the exception of certain pending proceeding as referred in note 12.1.3. The Commissioner
of Income Tax may, at any time during a period of five years from date of filing of return, select the deemed

assessment order for audit.
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The income tax assessments of the Company have been deemed to finalised up to and including the tax
year 2019 with the exception of certain pending proceedings as referred in note 12.1.3.

2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

(Loss)/Profit after taxation (770,071) 88,975

Numbers in '000'

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 50,160 50,160
Rupees
Earnings per share (15.35) 1.77

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

Cash and bank balances 24 117,691 164,355
Short term borrowings - running finance 11 (281,034) -
(163,343) 164,355

OPERATING SEGMENT

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

- Revenue from sale of cement represents 100% (2019 : 100%) of the total revenue of the Company.

- 92% (2019: 94%) gross sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.

- All non-current assets of the Company at 30 June 2020 are located in Pakistan.

- The amount of revenue from one major customer having sales of more than 10% of total sales
amounts to Rs. 517.189 million, excluding sales tax and Federal Excise Duty, during the year ended
30 June 2020 (2019: Rs.700.41 million). The major customer resides in Pakistan.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

For the purpose of disclosure those employees are considered as executives whose basic salary exceeds
twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration including benefits
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to the Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Other Executives of the Company are given below:

2020 2019
Chief Director Executive Chief Director Executive

Executive Executive Non-executive Executive Executive Non-executive

Rupees in ‘000’

Managerial remuneration 33,839 - - 150,821 33,839 - - 159,692
Bonus - - - - 4,550 - - 14,418
Retirement benefits - 9,981 - 10,294
Reimbursable perquisites 2,161 - - 9,330 2,161 - - 9,831
Meeting fee - - 95 - - - 115 -
36,000 - 95 170,132 40,550 - 115 194,235
Number of persons 1 6 39 1 6 42

36.3  The Chief Executive, and certain Executives are provided with the use of Company cars and the operating
expenses are borne by the Company to the extent of their entitlement.

37 TRANSACTIONS / BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of Frontier Papers Products(Private)Limited, key management personnel of
the Company and directors and their close family members and staff provident fund. Transactions with
related parties during the year other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are as

follows: Note 2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited

Balance at the beginning of the year 16,216 7,371
Purchases during the year 399,464 483,413
Payments during the year (373,725) (474,568)
Balance at the end of the year 41,955 16,216
Maximum loan outstanding at any time during the year 90,000 50,000
Loan outstanding at the end of the year 90,000 40,000
Interest Charged during the year 11,251 1,952
Interest outstanding at the end of the year 2,519 995

Frontier Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited

Bank placements 1,000 -

Key Management personnel

Repayment of advances by key management personnel 50 55
Balance at the end of the year 1,735 285
Provident fund contribution payable 10 3,896 4,093
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2020 2019
—— Metric Tons

GENERAL INFORMATION

Capacity, production (Clinker)

Production Capacity - (Cement) 869,400 869,400
Production Capacity - (Clinker) 828,000 828,000
Actual Production Cement 640,576 680,133
Actual Production Clinker 599,016 593,312

The capacity utilization of the Company during the current year remained under utilized due to market
situation.

Number of employees

The total number of employees and average number of employees at year end and during the year
respectively are as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——

Total number of employees as at June 30 322 340

Average number of employees during the year 124 129

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use
of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into

with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the
same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
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obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations
of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure
to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments from its customers.
Except for customers relating to the Government and certain small and medium sized enterprises, the
management strictly adheres to this policy. For any balances receivable from such small and medium sized
enterprises, the management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards them and makes provisions
against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. Further, credit risk on liquid funds is low because
the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired as and when it falls under the definition of a 'defaulted’
financial asset. For the Company’s internal credit management purposes, a financial asset is considered
as defaulted when it is past due for 90 days or more.

The Company writes off a defaulted financial asset when there remains no reasonable probability of
recovering the carrying amount of the asset through available means.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2020 2019
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
amount exposure amount exposure

(Rupees in ‘000%)
At amortised cost

-Long term investments 1,000 1,000 - -
-Trade debts 24,892 24,892 68,006 68,006
-Long term deposits 6,294 6,294 6,486 6,486
-Long term loan and advances 10,756 10,756 12,606 12,606
-Short term loan to a related party 90,000 90,000 40,000 40,000
-Loans, advances, deposits and
accrued mark-up 27,897 27,897 20,283 20,283
-Bank balances 116,973 116,973 163,703 163,703
277,812 277,812 311,084 311,084
At fair value through profit or loss
-Short term investments 117,422 117,422 189,436 189,436
At fair value through other comprehensive
income
-Long term investment 283,350 283,350 319,650 319,650
678,584 678,584 820,170 820,170

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by type of customer is as
follows:

2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——
Dealer / distributor 25,203 70,656
End-user customers 570 2,300
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As of the reporting date, the risk profile of the trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

2020 2019

Gross Life time Gross Gross
Carrying expected Carrying Carrying
amount credit amount amount

losses
(Rupees in ‘000"

Past due 1-90 days 24,427 - 66,025 -
More than 90 days 1,346 880 6,932 4,951
25,773 880 72,957 4,951

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the Company
believes that trade debtors considered good do not require any impairment. None of the other financial

assets are either past due or impaired.

The company does not require collateral in respect of trade debt. The company does not have trade
receivable and contract assets for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral.

The bank balances along with credit ratings are tabulated below:

2020 2019
Rupees in ‘000——
A- 7,593 55,139
Al 6,199 9,591
Al+ 47,286 64,799
A2 7 23
A2- 6 6
AAA 55,882 34,145
116,973 163,703

ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because
of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty
in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including interest payments:

(- | FECTO CEMENT LIMITED =)
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2020
Carrying Contractual Six months Sixtotwelve  Onetofive More than
amount cash flows or less months years five years
---- (Rupees in ‘000°)

Non-Derivative
Financial liabilities
Liabilities against assets

subject to lease 44,173 40,721 6,515 6,515 27,691 -
Accrued markup 14,313 14,313 14,313 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 14,418 14,418 14,418 - - -
Unpaid dividend 328 328 328 - - -
Trade and other payables 256,799 256,799 256,799 - - -
330,031 326,579 292,373 6,515 27,691 -
2019
Carrying Contractual Six months Sixto twelve  Onetofive  More than
amount cash flows or less months years five years

---- (Rupees in ‘000")

Non-Derivative
Financial liabilities
LLiabilities against assets

subject to lease 43,159 55,988 6,777 6,777 42,434 -
Accrued markup 363 363 363 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 14,501 14,501 14,501 - - -
Unpaid dividend 185 185 185 - - -
Trade and other payables 208,465 208,465 208,465 - - -
266,673 279,502 230,291 6,777 42,434 -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of
mark-up rates effective as at 30 June 2020 (and includes both principal and interest payable thereon).

iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in
market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument,
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the
market. Market risk comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and
payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales to the extent that, orders placed are denominated
in a currency other than Pak Rupees that is Dollar($). However, the foreign currency is converted into Pak
rupee at the time of receipt and then deposited into bank account.

Company is not exposed to currency risk as there are no foreign currency balances outstanding as at year
end.

b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and
long term borrowings from banks and term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet date the interest
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rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:

Note

Financial assets
Fixed rate instrument

Variable rate instrument
Bank balances - saving and deposit accounts 24.1

Short term loan to a related party

Term finance certificates 21.2

Financial liabilities

Variable rate instrument
Liabilities against asset subject to lease 7

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

2020

2019

Rupees in ‘000——

63,475 89,284
90,000 40,000
99,950 99,970
44,173 43,159

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit and loss

account and equity of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /(decreased) profit
or loss by Rs. 2.09 million (2019: 1.86 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for current and last

year.

Other price equity risk

Other price risk is the risk of changes in the fair value of investment in mutual funds as the result of changes
in the levels of net asset value of units held by the Company.As at June 30,2020, had there been increase
/ decrease in net asset value by 1%, with all other variables held constant,the profit before tax for the year

would have been higher / lower by Rs.0.175 million (2019: Rs. 0.895 million).

Collateral

The Company has created charge over its fixed assets and current assets in order to fulfil the collateral

requirements for various financing facilities.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise

between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate

their fair values.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of

the inputs used in making the measurements:




Annual Report 2020

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2:  Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Fair values of assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other
assets the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not have
a market \ quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model. Assumptions and inputs
used in the valuation technique mainly include risk-free rate, equity risk premium, long term growth rate
and projected rates of increase in revenues, cost of sales, other income and expenses. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the balance sheet date that would have been determined by market participants acting at
arm's length.

Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable
inputs and a higher degree of judgment and estimation in the determination of fair value. Judgment and
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination
of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount
rates, etc.

The table below analyses assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

June 30, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in ‘000"

Assets

Financial Asset

Units of open-end mutual funds: 17,472 - - 17,472
Privately Placed Term Finance Certificates - 99,950 - 99,950

Investment in ordinary shares of Frontier Papers
Products (Private)Limited - - 283,350 283,350

June 30, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in ‘000"

Assets
Financial Asset

Units of open-end mutual funds: 89,466 - - 89,466

Privately Placed Term Finance Certificates - 99,970 - 99,970

Investment in ordinary shares of Frontier Papers
Products(Private)Limited - - 319,650 319,650

;
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Capital risk management

The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The management closely monitors the
return on capital along with the level of distributions to ordinary share holders.

The management seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company is not required to maintain any regulatory capital.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES:

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary for the
purposes of comparison and better presentation. A major reclassification of corresponding figures made
in these financial statements is as follows:

Reclassified from component Reclassified to component Rupees in '000'

(Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments  (Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
and accrued markup) and accrued markup)

Advances to suppliers and contractors -

unsecured, considered good Accrued markup 4,159
Accrued expenses Provision for marking fee
(Trade and other payables) (Trade and other payables) 50,823
GENERAL

Impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements

The COVID-19 pandemic put pressure on the sales volume and bottom line of the company. It has also
caused extra ordinary and unprecedented curtailment in economic and social activities since its spread in
Pakistan from March 2020. This pandemic posed a big threat to business and financial challenges across
various sectors of the economy in Pakistan. The Company complied with the SOPs prescribed by Federal
and Provincial Governments. Sales and production activities were affected during lockdowns.

In connection with the accounting and reporting obligations as required in circular 26 of 2020 issued by
SECP, the management of the company assessed the impact of COVID-19 related events on its financial
statements particularly its impact on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption. This
included assessment of both financial (debt covenant compliance concerns, renegotiation of debt agreements,
liquidity and funding concerns) and non-financial (disruption of supply chain, logistics, fluctuating demand,
workforce management and employee health issue) considerations. In addition to this, the assumptions
used and estimates associated with measurement of various assets and liabilities were also assessed.
COVID-19 pandemic was a significant event during the year. However, The Company remained up to date
in all its financial commitments. The Management believes that the going concern assumption of the
Company remains valid. Manpower, materials and other necessary resources which are available at plant
site are continuously working on the project despite the lock down due to Covid-19.

The management believes that due to the pandemic the Company’s operations, financial position and
results have been impacted only on a temporary basis and believes that as normalcy comes about, these
impacts have started to recede.
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The Company availed employee refinance facility for payment of salaries and wages under SBP’s infrastructure,
Housing & SME Finance department (IH&SMEFD) Circular No. 6 of 2020 dated April 10, 2020.

41.2  Date of authorization of the financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting held on September 29,2020.

41.3  Level of rounding

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

P

MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO ROHAIL AIMAL KéDUL SAMAD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Nf FECTO CEMENT LIMITED @




Annual Report 2020

Sy

(A EIe S FE B 22020, 29 5.0 1L S oS3 LG PBL WLl seund Ui Jb

SN S 5
/@JLpg’

L“@lf'ﬂdﬁcJ}jd"{gu;ﬂjrl}uwiJLU“/JBJU‘*QJlﬂ.".U"f:aﬁ'd/u’fujué‘cd)ji: uﬁ/:J/J’J&lraJ}{flfﬁ&g/
Kuu,ffuﬁdu!@pﬁégj{)&:u@‘y;JfLuffu,uum}u[}yL‘»L?{(’:/wﬁ_Jaan‘(JumJg.ﬁ’CL(L?dmLurﬁ‘é
A feu

Pk Log
s FISam

20207729 :4."

[ |l FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




Annual Report 2020
: Z“é;,Lué-U;,“LJ./;UJJL/,ué/d/t?/fd/rn@;_gwf&rﬁwgf” U S Sukumy

ayf(ﬁy&uﬁE’JHL..jlgd/g;;v":ﬂug&/u’?gtﬁ@!éLJ{C?U.?;!/'I”;’EIWKJ{(%G{ﬂJQggJ!J{
At i E SR S L e WIS St L s L L FE LA e S

b LT

J/.'.)
ST S e Ul S MG e e e s PSR g SN s Ao
e L SFE T e TS 30692021 0230 Ll bl UsisTIRE G A 2 Sl e S
e B EIS 3
U s
e B LA L 1y 202002300l s ST e 3 227(2)(M S 20176 1
O

Lg{d}d/?’d}@/:dﬁ&’édb’ﬂ};ulad/fji

UL

3,147,216 2Pt
(770,071) ﬁ;wuuﬁ
2,377,145 e AP
Cors”

(25,080) (8%, 241201902300 L LeS B s i35
P73 10,508
2,352,065 N k(T




Annual Report 2020

_‘L/L'!afg}‘(/@nz_/c«llbffbé Gl St L L}tjﬂr}l%‘r/’ﬁ].rL'}/fL et FE S e g
L@L&l;g@&&f’;@ Jdﬁ.&fuﬁie;(ﬁiJ{Jguﬁf@Lw’_@égqg Jyﬁf{(uﬂt{gwa;&{
_‘L/d/lgéygf;ﬂc«ubfd/@uKLJ{Q@JQUJIL’5

DS PSS

u;Jwifm/?y’ bR 85 el Gt 178 ha 12,0550 e uime e S UT
IR A2 T A FE el S F 2,027 SIS Gt 7S it e a2 e S0
S A il (0T it P S S S L ool PGS P o el Te§ e UL

O STy

ﬂu_"«,ﬁ/&;&“f

U B L e 2 B s g S S (LTI S A S Ll Ll JedL
e T I FE st F 5o s 2L U o b S At b

dJ){JL’/.J’jJ:lZ}'}Uﬂ@g

(H61P5 ) A s e § 80 s irre S5 st e P 5 SEK 120 1 3 S e S usesT
4:"-”*5UW&VL”J-”U'/”LJZ@K%L:@QWLtf'{uﬁu'?ewdﬂr‘c;b,f'lgaf(udﬁd)&w;;{gﬁﬂ
LA BT b T ity #5142 20156415 S al e i bl e s a7t b

S e de 1S3 £ S

crgw(ws@{;./w &f@g'_ﬁf@wwmq u’.&f‘anf W1 Lol it 185G #EAAE ey
L Er L S S FE R st S G S AL SIS e S e 23363 SIL L M
e W e b mF Y A Qe Qe et Ts S

Tﬁﬁf‘:’{&’&’é zfzd/ﬁ/ta,,)lpc)lﬁfj_fz‘aK\LJ;!?!&}JI[LV&LU)"LEfggfg/ﬁzfa,_.jlgu(q”/{ﬂ
Al e B\ S e S AT Sl (s f S L F S B e S5t
_%.gt/uz’uuf{;lm,/‘j{ LA T T

@ EEeEEYEIYED




Annual Report 2020
WLU?J’MJL)&UI

sl Iy E E e Fe I SUBtn fs QUi s 2 Sl S 32010085 e S 71558
Jl/ul/u-‘aé@%(foﬁ@@abjﬁd}‘géul/u!/:”ﬁf;;_/lgJf/}f-‘a/‘”gjlﬁ:ljfwguf}f:Kg:"":é.ujd@‘l/fjfdgjlﬁrad
e S P AL FE AT e (DS

Cf K(_b/{/b
LSS B IS S e SO E DL

djb.»;‘d/"b»u‘f../{f/(

Q/;’:/?/}bgf}f/ﬂg_j!)ﬁ:/fﬂi JIZ e L/:ﬁ'éé J’&UU}J/X}’/.”’V“U‘/&:’J?«T&L’L Lﬁdﬁf‘&“/{/@b.ﬂ}wg
ot S S T £330 Ugnns G oGl o TU A e g n3 P LI L o f
& ez e ANL LA 3R

e UL AT 308 Bl e SN T o5 L L A fin b AL S e PP L e
U E I 5 AL U At e e
_L%/g;‘;,}d,!}u,u,:{uﬁ&vwg’yyuiéulgf/@/guufd‘jv&{upildwn’%

kS A -BUU Se S G EbA A i 236 QL £ AV e Slob QDb SUil Lz JL G %
VAo L S L LA

(&L Lt 8.90201DL L A pe el o s B AL s B3 P e L 5

I‘L‘a’;}’/

e LIS L S e b Sk $538s i S U e P e e SlraFin d L A sl S195S
c,l.l,ﬁuLﬁg.‘;,?sJLL:»le'.:/ﬁ_u“’;f?l?ulf/ﬁd/gu&;gsu@’h‘u’ﬁchquﬁuﬁ/uﬁcesufu)'éu;gﬁ
SIS 2t S SIS P55 B e e LA e e 2 S
JJ@J&J&J/;Lfé;«hlﬁ!qb{z}b‘%l!_u;{élﬁ%@ééﬁq’u#urgaaﬂbuld/&g.pul
Sl Sy s Q 1 Fatel 1L Wil Pl L N E e KL S B E
AL e 10 G SFE TP Usinm i e it FA ST iy B2 2 s

X &
FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 75




A b b LU

5/5 T
3/5 Frocts
5/5 SIS
5/5 s IE_
5/5 — ez
4/5 et
3/5 Sl elo s

Annual Report 2020

;‘/}"..ﬁ{dbJ.yzJ&ﬂ?ﬁ}'ﬁ/ﬂ-ﬁfd)gﬁwzuf&uﬂmJﬁ’ﬁuﬁurﬂeiu'ghd/.:«gX)/zﬂcﬂwzj 1Y)
ST e o e b s F P i Fedh b (Bt b St 2020 4129

_é Jﬂﬂ&"w%

U ped L g é

2B Qe dut el ut:.um;wﬂwﬁ'fd/;ﬁu»éw!J_qrjﬁfudwﬁyfﬂwngyLJ/"-f/’U(QLJ{
L i b LU A G B F IS L~Lgt“/tm/;u»;ﬁiuﬁjg,p/“ii:A’/‘uﬁurueréuyf:@mmm/u,}{/’u
IS 36 A LA L s W T S e

»
-—)

uy?f! 3.9

7

SIALF 5T Jor 3L 2019613 5.5 60 2 e Bl S A6 TS bt e (AT L ST

B SE Tbsble 5150 6L )

29&15@/}6/‘bJu%L’;L/ﬁuﬁurW'uLééﬁ”"g/ﬂ?’(4)/.lf£(j“£57u1udl/ul/u

EPb b LMo

3/4 Tk et
4/4 g eI
4/4 g SISz

@ EREEES =)




Annual Report 2020

e G S W a S sle F Bt 1 55 6 s 2 dii G5
e WA St P i SR Qe L U Bt 6

Il 2 e G 454,58 et i ey, Ut Gud U Ko 5T L 20200230 0 dLitiemtiic b, 7
G399 -L 2019

A KSR Uy o3 St s 3012 SIS 2l Koty e 0BG 2L s (565
oK)

P FS 20 AL g e\ S K QI st 2S5
S QY dsstote

LSS § i pp el 241 35 S IS B UL G b S 3 o e S ST £
ﬁ%ﬂdl‘zbﬁaf:‘él‘/@ﬁ)}}(&u}lKU;:’A:‘LKgbﬁrwjgd)/b{&ulw%)'ﬂyugéiLuu’g/jq:/L}yhc:’)/,/)’
S 3K NSO ST Qb 20 8 o Bt 5 gt 20 28 E Dy AL Sk
LA AR S S e o ATl L ol sl H oG8 E S I Sy on

L

e oL R AL skl S

PR PN IS 1 Py u(,wi;"/;luf'},yﬁ/uﬁgfé Uil U’{ QW@&W(Q&Q}&XV& uny.E :a-b’?ulzuidl/dl.}‘:(/'
AWloste L sl Y e 37 L I o bt ML o s o FLL Uil e FH 8 S e 5052w
_‘ggfdﬁ/{:)DJJJ’J%QLG’»MU':@'Z;U/:

LY,

-4“_élgk’f.@w’ﬂrﬁd/’M&}gL}/&VJL}{ADU&}JUD:”L)"A{
e G AL Ao SUs Aol i S E Ut urtel . £ L ie(5) EL LT Jedlutis

:15 FECTO CEMENT LIMITED .




Annual Report 2020

J‘ﬁ/&m_u;;gu;’r_/véiz’.gg,ﬁ}f"f,g/uzﬁiué_@;ﬁfiuw&&{z’.m-m&uyuﬁwgt/
gu,b»,;,?,uﬂﬁugﬁ;,?,Jla;;[JﬁmeJﬁdﬁdw‘}L.;?_u@j/lgéuui‘;z;uy;fpziz;tgéd‘&uu&)L?/,va"
dﬁu%-uﬁﬁdd‘ufu'ﬂd:dﬁ(ufl%ﬁﬂ%gfy'dzﬁlufufé'f.'/ﬁ"ﬁbéf_uyl;:/‘/l;d?,:»lbf}lJ&{:ujzﬁgduy
S S L JES S Sl dus et

ot d 1eFl4(2) ) 2017 jﬁﬂf/(y@?ima!@aw;:&tumutwﬂ);i{
e AL I et TSt A e

I (’G.mgw&;.;twfmﬁ; J(’GQJ(¢,,ff4),gTd/jM,Q&{JL{MJ@u”J;L&v“/
AL oL G oL 123L 22807 52017k 128 IS fre SIE AL G- St
F o sl IS 2 ESebiand LG 208(7) FS 21 7dl%ﬂ§ﬁ!k!f/£uﬁ*u’u;$‘:%fg
UL F AL L L 20192002 Lol L FF 3oL g s M- $ o2 5L,2020
/uﬁ"gf;:lug;ﬁr{.gf.ﬁﬁzﬁ(}{iﬁ G S Ao L Uil gt F 6154 A IL ezl e for”
—pEL LSy einS
L2l
N T Ul SN R AW PRVSV ISRVt ZRNE ) T G PRVEEE Tt BN AR IR B (g
U AESI L ST e ot Secth 25 L b St FSloml b SIS FS b
LGB e F e Pt Sl Mm L Iz by 2 G SFTL L P i b Loy
u%qugm

St Fe e gzﬁumzu%fwgm,wmﬂagﬂ L2 S e e\ 1AL e S A
_c_(}lo

:fugz./uwiKaw%jlﬁé&ﬁf&fédﬂygfd/ﬂfq/g/t{

J&”guﬁJﬁ&f/.,u/mJf;J@mewg,MLun.:,ub»rt?z:d{:_;w.ﬁw/,ngﬁg/&ymﬁgc_qu&ﬁ
_q;&/difu

-‘ngLaf/y;ﬂ’ﬁ/@/mswu?%iv(&;qw%{z

Y94 104 /Zm{ﬁ’”d’./.z_u&“w(@,tu’fw,wgf@)ﬂt,}/éJv&&éLﬁgu@g,JytéquJe{a
st e S Qe 2 S, JG8 k1 By S P J e e, -4

@ EEeEEYEIYED




Annual Report 2020

DL K U S i oL uTa A e
Skl x

-é’ilgU;uf,w:/“b/.g}@fa%}uu(uj‘ézlg’gLp;”a(.'/sié.'/‘jilfiuyb:/'/!;(})/;u'&u}laf._jlg(f&-(
.;u“g.;gmédmmpﬁé&f

u"{ut{zugéﬁ_v,L&Jt/v?‘;z:Jmw;,LLn,Lﬁz,/uuﬁféﬁjv_b,;f/,"a,@;/g,/K:C_w',/'mu;ku'{
Sonae b6 L L P B L TN e B P b3 F e e B FE S S
z‘.ﬂéuf@y’g@%’ﬁzwﬁfj%m,éb/n,,JJ{+wu/g/?augudw,u}u;(aiJ, e 2 le e n

_2(?gdwnu:ﬁ/-%rfdu?&n,é_wu;‘ju,'ét?g{.,&,vdu

Ak

GBS e bt o D S5t S SIS 65 S e Ut L S Bl UL
L Fe S\ KR AL Pt S| S - G b b S r $ 1830 e b S

e et U S S P Tt e s S e sz S LS s
SR PN b L L LS gt S S F S ot Sl s 2§15 e fan?
Jyﬁf.,a_ujLngu‘u‘;{UWLgJuﬁ}LI,LLg%;/?;yQ/‘ﬂ,rqLuu’:ffu,'Juﬁ}:_,.;ngu;’”:Juﬁm
AL GG D S e Fe o Sl Ll S SIS Szt st (e

L $ e Lo N ES P St Lo i TS i AL It

Lntut SE ST e s ) Loeo§oin o $nlndotusd S S b e (=1
;é_wu::/@&)zmg@Ju,kﬁ?iuc.f_ubrKé_sz:;;@;%&;pd/w%nu@ﬁ/jd’i_mé_LzU*"”Lu
e e BB A e e S sl of Ty b M U st ot (P e (Bt S0 2T 57

_2 SIS S stz e SuS SRS S

Fus S0

U}’"G’{ uﬁ"/}g"

uﬁu;f}“;’L'sngci:qup?'ﬂﬁ”":’;201 Sﬁ’;(fﬁgfﬂ?’dr}”/gébflgd/u'/t[;g:d/fﬂg‘{élqj’u@'d}/:«/uﬁu;:‘/;(}b/‘




Annual Report 2020

DG 208 33200n L LS00 a0 3,034 5 L cn TP e i n e 2 j3
SE-8rE87.49%2 FL B 19 275 80 s 2 T8 A B0 lne £ pS6 B §n 81 8 29.96%
fic«tﬂ’z.&?ﬁalﬁjulK5.40%uﬁc«u"/.)!u,u’:,b/l?Jﬁ:ﬁjuluiégjy’pfld/yuU&L?g/lééugg,@d,g

S T eSS oL N3 B s E O SRS AU S u T S 51516 6.1 1% 2

Uil LA §S 303,464 5 (Ut L uT S8, 7408 b= T e fi1uai P G2 S &
e TS558 8 6.03% 2 L F g 3 (8 23.13%

*e
¥ Yol

BT s e FE 5088 6.0 25 31 o 36 0.80% A1 AU S G Ui
u:g@duLnu:/,J&,ufu:.LwLLw;ﬁo.sowoLu,Lxu:fi}Lug@-mjwKJ[}%,JM1uﬁ@wédv
&?L,?,m_u?,}t;K[}m;._ug&a?_usumJﬁfu%,uurd““”;_.;tgu(yﬁuﬁgéu%@,@gt(&_mjunm 0.41%
(BBUETG 0 Bt B I U Ut 2038 St 2L 1 oK ey §5.63 0 S
I e I S s St e ) S s Flesl i A 5

d;f)v:iﬂf@amuuﬁru KAT15UE U e o 3 It bt S ol i f U sf s S
_anéwl&t{a’.uuf‘sgwmid y o8

e A NS e b A A e s S Bl D L f Pl o e

WIS b s 1300l i FFe T s I e 1,0380mE S Qs

M%)/&??O[&{Lgﬁ(f&fuﬁwgl')J-(géd;"‘fb‘azd/u&{))/?d/tfgﬁ’[L&'{wulﬁ/QVL@JquUL%[U;{
_BUY zw.»?_uuésgéc»ug}wum,idwm}i@emuuﬁ m?}u

ST BT ST a6 215,350 P B S T s
Jl%ﬂ&?/f/ﬂ:a 165 Sk
S este G o IS K e I U A1 B e (Tl 6 G S floiy e 1L ik

e bbb 8t Fa il 5@ 2 s RIS 6L e
_‘ajL-Zvl.;llaUULﬁuﬁ':ffﬂ/dml@.JWJM@J}QHQJJ%J?LK:}QV:/mJUﬁ%L PAg

@ B EY )




Annual Report 2020

S5
(7.49) 571,106 616,317 S
6.11 70,344 66,295 Ty
(6.03) 641,450 682,612 St

U e SE GBS 5.82%015.78% A U tobag St P bl Sz o = b $GF
_ugdaa,ésgﬂzréze@:dw,ru{{.,»lbuf:ét

SAEntJEBIS 0.98% i8S a8 7 a%0ml Jedi S AL B S s
I 3Lo1Kaa6.1 1u:;u@&&%ﬁ;wiuﬂzz.07%ué_uguf/.Jfgéuwumdnﬁ.mwm.07%uﬁu‘f§/'

SRASTNI

2SS e e G S s

L PTSUT A U e s
2020 2019

3,033,739 4,332,388 g BAF
430,165 408,108 ents BA¥
3,463,904 4,740,496 Bk
4,179,341 4,146,193 Fiieh
(715,437) 594,303 Bl
(1,034,246) 130,343 B
(770,071) 88,975 B /(o)
(15.35) 1.77 (S PZ BT ()
ﬁ/'i’uﬂ

Seoe Lo gins o fS e $nEndE 19 2t d 0L Izt St B e T 8A S e S S Umigs
du:a/ufoi'ﬁ”g)d)gd/u'}'ufu@de’g};/‘u:Jvufﬁzﬁd/&{’/vi’d@ﬂ-‘aL’f@/bézurd/7.49%°ou‘f(%£ in/.
_Lﬁ?}lﬁgj}«kufu?l./djféuludVL;}JL)JM?}[LQ[;JM}@JUL’&DM%JMJ}’

:15 FECTO CEMENT LIMITED .




Annual Report 2020

Al rsy 135
S

e Ut 2§ 12020023000 Uity st (st 3Tt g Qs S FAL 2 81K T
-

o‘/llg

ﬁ/’&ﬁ.@pcf"u&nmf&ﬁ ¢ e 98% Ut e b e ey S s
39.9676 65 10 8 0.98% 2 AL B jd SemmS e L 50 Fsfb a6 88um L A5zt
350061 9.98%uﬁwg!wut&zigu&qw/u,é_nwuﬂo.34(2@/”54 SN B L

G sl Az Lin T 85 Sk B e 2 P

fi}duL%&m;u:u%.g@fs/@/.swm.03%uﬁfgng&dse.so/;zﬁ(ﬁ}/?ygﬁaﬂgé',uzdoﬁ
LL{%/@1,50%6.07%&(%5ﬁ}{id&df%él;uﬁ&?@)Jl-ggfdé1 97F KT S 2B/ 34,3346
S Stk L St Uik de SIS S g bnEud S 220t e il
K A8 AT e T B 3 S 29 3T w5 i e SOl A% AL 25

SAMLL Z;'GL!U(‘“55!’&:O"‘uﬂfjféJVU’MGh.f"eu(c/:@s'duc/uﬁ,&é&’/:i”dﬁﬁ quﬁfi}dw
Bk

o F WK B /T

Ztaa/ﬁﬂufdjo‘//lg&@KJLLULlgé;bu;bbng.dbL@JJGAA&JL’:;%}OVUU”;HJ@JJ{

@ EeEEIY )

U
AN 2020 2019
Jslag
(5.78) 559,016 593,312 )
(5.82) 640,576 680,133 Lo
?E,E’o




Annual Report 2020

Jama
Punji

www.jamapuniji.pk

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

Key features:
Gz Licensed Entities Verification 4l Stock trading simulator

(based on live feed from KSE)
EE Knowledge center
: Risk profiler*
B Tax credit calculator* B Finarcial calculator
Wy ication u& Subscription to Alerts (event
Insurance & Investment Checklist notifications, corporate and

regulatory actions
7? FAQs Answered 9 ry ) )_
u Jamapuniji application for
mobile device

Z Online Quizzes

e» Scam meter*
& Jamapunji games*

£} L
jamapuniji.pk @jamapuniji_pk

g_% /} Jama Puniji is an Investor

A .+ Education Initiative of

L % Securites and Exchange

“‘W Commission of Pakistan *Mobile apps are also available for download for android and ios devices
SECP
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PROXY FOR M Annual Report 2020

The Company Secretary,

The Fecto Cement Limited

35, DarulAman Housing Society,
Block 7/8, Shahrah-e-Faisal,

Karachi.

I/We

of being a member of FECTO CEMENT LIMITED and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per the Share Register Folio No .and/or CDC Participant ID No.

and Account / Sub-Account No. hereby appoint

of who is also a member of the Company vide Registration Folio Number as my/our

proxy for me & on my/our behalf at the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, October 28,
2020 at 2:30 PM at Company's registered office 35, DarulAman Housing Society, Block 7/8, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi and any
adjournment thereof.

Signhature on
Revenue Stamp
of PKRY/-

Signature of Shareholder
Folio / CDC Nos.

Witnesses:

(1) Signature (2) Signature

Name Name

Address Address

CNIC/ Passport No. CNIC/ Passport No.

Notes: .

1. A member entitled to attend the meeting may appoint a proxy in writing to attend the meeting on the member's
behalf.

2. If a member is unable to attend the meeting, they may complete and sign this form and send it to the Company

Secretary, The Fecto Cement Limited, 35, DarulAman Housing Society, Block 7/8, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75350 so
as to reach no less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

3. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she himself/herself is a member of the Company except that a corporation
may appoint a person who is not member.

-For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities
In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met:

() The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be stated on the
Form.

(ii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with the proxy form.
(iii) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall
be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

:15 FECTO CEMENT LIMITED .
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FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

4%, Darul Aman Housing Socialy, Block 7 & B
Shahrah-=-Faisal, Karschi-73350

Phones: (+8221] 345301 20-2, {+B221) 34530124
Wabsita: www _feclogroup.com



